
 

 

 
 

BOARD 

OF 

COMMISSIONERS 
 

 

 

July 05, 2022 

7:00 PM 

 

 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  July 05, 2022 

  Page 2 of 4 

 

 
This agenda is only a tentative schedule of matters the Commissioners may address at their meeting and all items 

found on it may be deleted, amended or deferred. The Commissioners may also, in their absolute discretion, 

consider matters not shown on this agenda. 

 

Special accommodations for the disabled who attend public meetings can be made by contacting the Clerk to the 

Board 24 hours in advance at 252-338-6363, Ext. 311. 

 

Please silence cell phones. 
 

Agenda 
 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

July 05, 2022; 7:00 PM 

New Camden Public Library 

118 Hwy 343 North 

 

 

 Call to Order 

 Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 

 Pastor Tommy Berry, Shiloh Baptist Church 

ITEM 1. Consideration of Agenda (For discussion and possible action) 

ITEM 2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement 

ITEM 3. Public Comments 

It is requested that comments be limited to (2-3) minutes. The length and number of comments 

may be limited upon the Chairman’s discretion due to scheduling and other issues. 

ITEM 4. Presentations (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Chairman Ross Munro 

B. Camden County Update - North Carolina Department of Transportation 

Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

Reconvene Board of Commissioners 

ITEM 5. Public Hearings 

A. Schedule of Fees Amendment - Chuck Jones 

B. Commerce Park Property Sale - John Morrison 

ITEM 6. New Business (For discussion and possible action) 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  July 05, 2022 

  Page 3 of 4 

 

A. Tax Report - Lisa Anderson 

B. Interlocal Agreement for Central Communications Amendment 

C. Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Coordination Services Amendment 

ITEM 7. Board Appointments (For discussion and possible action) 

A. Planning Board 

B. Department of Social Services Board 

C. Tourism Development Authority Board 

D. NCACC Conference & Legislative Goals Conference Delegate 

ITEM 8. Consent Agenda  

A. BOC Meeting Minutes - June 6, 2022 

B. School Budget Amendments 

C. Tax Collection Report 

D. DMV Monthly Report 

E. Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 - March 2022 

F. Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 - May 2022 

G. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

H. Surplus Property Request 

I. Summer Camp Assistant Contract 

J. Annual Senior Nutrition Contract 

K. Set Public Hearing - Ordinance Text Amendment 

L. Set Public Hearing - Rezoning Request 

ITEM 9. County Manager's Report 

ITEM 10. Commissioners' Reports 

ITEM 11. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies 

A. Register of Deeds Report 

B. Library Report 

ITEM 12. Other Matters (For discussion and possible action) 



Agenda – Camden County Board of Commissioners  July 05, 2022 

  Page 4 of 4 

 

ITEM 13. Adjourn 



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 4.A 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Chairman Ross Munro 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

Chairman Ross Munro will introduce the incoming County Manager. 

4.A

Packet Pg. 5



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Presentations 

 

Item Number: 4.B 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Camden County Update - North Carolina Department of 

Transportation 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

A representative from North Carolina Department of Transportation will give an update on 

projects in Camden County. 

4.B

Packet Pg. 6



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Public Hearings 

 

Item Number: 5.A 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Schedule of Fees Amendment 

 

Attachments: AgendaSummary_Fee Schedule Adjustment

 (DOCX) 

Water & Sewer Proposed Fees (PDF) 

 

Agenda summary and supporting documentation attached. 

5.A

Packet Pg. 7



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Meeting Date:   July 5, 2022 

 

Attachments:    Fee Adjustment 

 

Submitted By: Public Works  

 

Item Title: Water and Sewer fee schedule adjustment 

 

 

Summary: 

 

The changes to the Schedule of Fees are as follows: 

 

• Increase the base water rate by $5.00 from $25.00 to $30.00 

 

• Reduce the sewer tap fee to a flat rate of $500.00 if the connection is done by the 

developer in the course of installing piping for new subdivisions.  The fees will remain 

the same if the county installs the connection. 

 

 

 
Recommendation: 

Submit for approval July 5th 2022 

 

 

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
aS

u
m

m
ar

y_
F

ee
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 A
d

ju
st

m
en

t 
 (

33
30

 :
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

at
er

 &
 S

ew
er

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
ee

s 
 (

33
30

 :
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

at
er

 &
 S

ew
er

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 F
ee

s 
 (

33
30

 :
 S

ch
ed

u
le

 o
f 

F
ee

s 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Public Hearings 

 

Item Number: 5.B 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Commerce Park Property Sale 

 

Attachments: Lucia Lease_Purchase Agreement (DOCX) 

 

Summary: 

The Board of Commissioners will conduct a public hearing to receive public input on the 

conveyance of a fee simple interest in real property from the County of Camden to Lucia 

Specialized Hauling of Virginia, Incorporated, consisting of 10.61 +/- acres situate within the 

Camden Commerce Park. 

Recommendation: 

Hold public hearing and add to the agenda for consideration. 

5.B

Packet Pg. 11



NORTH CAROLINA 

CAMDEN COUNTY 

 

LEASE OF UNIMPROVED PROPERTY AND OPTION TO PURCHASE 

 

This lease is made this the 1st day of August, 2022 by and between Camden County, a Body Politic and 

Political Subdivision of the State of North Carolina ("Lessor") and Lucia Specialized Hauling of VA 

Inc. ("Lessee"). 

 

 

RECITALS 

 

1. Lessor owns the real property hereinafter described and has authority to lease the same pursuant 

to North Carolina General Statute 160A-272, the requirements of which have been complied. 

2. Lessee is desirous of leasing the property to promote further potential development of its 

business interests, including preparation for a potential purchase of real property from Lessor. 

3. Lessor is desirous of promoting commercial development within Camden County and is willing 

to lease said property for the term hereinafter expressed and other recited conditions. 

4. Lessee is desirous of leasing the property on the same terms. 

 

 

Now, therefore, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter expressed and other good 

and sufficient consideration the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

 

SECTION ONE 

DESCRIPTION 

 

The property being leased shall be 10.61+/- Acres on Opportunity Drive in Camden County Commerce 

Park tax parcel number ID 017071006989590000, which property shall be promptly selected and 

designated by Lessee. This property is part of a larger tract of land and will be identified with its own 

individual parcel number when the survey is performed and recorded.  Thereafter this designated 

property shall be further described by metes and bounds or marked with monuments which shall define 

the leasehold which shall not be changed without consent of both parties. 

 

SECTION TWO 

TERM 

 

This lease shall exist for a period of ONE YEAR from the date of execution.  Because Lessor is a North 

Carolina local government, there can be no extensions without subsequent  approval of the Camden 

County Board of Commissioners. Additionally, such extensions cannot exceed one-year terms. Should 

Lessee desire an extension, it must petition, through the County Manager, the Board of Commissioners 

no later than 30 days prior to the expiration of this one-year term. All terms shall be pursuant to the 

requirements of NCGS 160A-272. The term of lease can be terminated at any time by Lessee purchasing 

the property. 

 

 

 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

u
ci

a 
L

ea
se

_P
u

rc
h

as
e 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

 (
33

31
 :

 C
o

m
m

er
ce

 P
ar

k 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 S
al

e)



SECTION THREE 

IMPROVEMENTS 

 

It is contemplated Lessee may improve the property including construction of entry / exit points, 

grading, and clearing.  Any improvements, at termination of the lease, shall remain the sole and 

exclusive property of Lessor. 

 

SECTION FOUR 

USE 

 

Lessee may utilize the property for the storage of its vehicles and equipment and for other purposes 

directly related to the expansion of Lessee's business and permanent acquisition of the subject real 

property. 

 

SECTION FIVE 

RENT 

 

The yearly rent for this lease is ONE HUNDRED SEVEN THOUSAND, ONE HUNDRED TWENTY-

FOUR DOLLARS ($107,124) payable in 12 equal monthly installments of EIGHT THOUSAND, 

NINE HUNDRED TWENTY-SEVEN DOLLARS ($8,927.00) due on the first day of each month, 

beginning August 1, 2022 and continuing each month thereafter throughout this term. All rent paid for 

this lease shall be deducted from the total purchase price. 

 

SECTION SIX 

OPTION TO PURCHASE 

 

The Option Period shall be for a period of three (3) years from the date Buyer and Seller signs this 

Agreement. At any time during the Option Period, Lessee may exercise this Option and the closing shall 

take place within 30 days. 

 

The Purchaser shall pay FIFTY THOUSAND DOLLARS ($50,000) to Seller upon acceptance date of 

this Lease / Purchase and Agreement. 

 

The parties further agree to negotiate their respective commitments at the time the option to purchase is 

exercised at which time a new Lease/ Purchase Agreement will be drafted and placed on the Board of 

Commissioners agenda for consideration. 

 

 

             

Lessor       Lessee 

Camden County, NC     Lucia Specialized Hauling of VA Inc. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

u
ci

a 
L

ea
se

_P
u

rc
h

as
e 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

 (
33

31
 :

 C
o

m
m

er
ce

 P
ar

k 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 S
al

e)



ADDENDUM: 

Letter of Intent from Lucia Specialized Hauling of VA Inc for purchase of 10.61 +/- acres on 

Opportunity Drive in Camden County Industrial Park. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

u
ci

a 
L

ea
se

_P
u

rc
h

as
e 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

 (
33

31
 :

 C
o

m
m

er
ce

 P
ar

k 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 S
al

e)



LUCIA SPECIALIZED HAULING of VA INC 

1500 Steel St, Chesapeake, VA 23323 

Ph. (518) 441-5554 

rlucialsh@gmail.com 
 
 

 
May 13, 2022 

Ken Bowman 
County Manager 
PO Box 190 
Camden, NC 27921 

 

Re: Letter of Intent for Purchase of 10.61+/- Acres on Opportunity Drive in Camden County Industrial 
Park. 

 
Dear Ken: 

 

This letter shall serve as a proposal from Lucia Specialized Hauling of VA Inc. for the purchase of the 
10.61+/- acres on Opportunity Drive and Eco Park Boulevard in the Camden County Industrial Park. The 
land and all Seller’s rights, title, privileges and interests in and to the real property shall be transferred to 
Purchaser as set forth below. 

 

The purchase price paid by Purchaser to Seller for the property shall be $371,350. The Seller shall pay 
$50,000 to Seller upon acceptance of a Purchase and Sale Agreement. 

 
Purchaser shall pay Seller the remaining balance in 36 monthly installments of $8,927.00 each. 

 
Seller shall provide Purchaser with copies of real estate tax bills, survey, most recent Phase I & II 
environmental site assessments for the Property, documents evidencing or securing the existing 
encumbrances, subdivision or zoning documents, and any other agreements, inspections or 
investigations commissioned by Seller for the Property. 

 
Purchaser shall provide Seller with proposed plan of warehouse, equipment laydown area, parking area 
and driveway plans for approval by Camden County. 

 

Upon approval by Camden County, Buyer will begin excavation for driveway, equipment laydown area 
and parking area. Upon further approval by Buyer’s bank, Buyer will proceed to constructing warehouse 
facility. 

 
Purchaser shall pay for Title Policy. Any other closing costs and fees shall be paid per the custom of 
Camden County where the property is located. Buyer and Seller shall each pay the fees of their own 
attorneys and other professionals. 

 

This Letter of intent shall be governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina. 

 
This Letter of Intent is intended solely as a preliminary expression of general intent and interest and is to 
be used for general discussions purposes only; it is neither an offer, nor an acceptance, or a contract. 
The parties hereby agree that this Letter of Intent does not create any agreement, obligation, right, duty, 
or otherwise by either party to negotiate a purchase and sale agreement and/or to continue or further 
discuss or negotiate a purchase and sale agreement. The parties shall have absolutely no contractual 
duties to one another, and the parties expressly agree and acknowledge that no implied covenants are 
attached to this Letter of Intent, including, but not limited to, the implied covenant of good faith and fair 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

u
ci

a 
L

ea
se

_P
u

rc
h

as
e 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

 (
33

31
 :

 C
o

m
m

er
ce

 P
ar

k 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 S
al

e)

mailto:rlucialsh@gmail.com


dealing. Only upon the full and final execution and delivery of a definitive Purchase and Sale 
Agreement will any obligations attach with respect to the terms and conditions outlined in this 
Letter of Intent. 

We look forward to your response on or before June 20, 2022, the expiration date of this Letter of 
Intent. In the event your response is not received by that time, this Letter of Intent shall be deemed 
to have been automatically rescinded. 

 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 

Ric Lucia, President 
Lucia Specialized Hauling of VA, Inc 

 
 
 
 

 
ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED: 

 
 

By:  

 

 

Name:  

 

 

Title:  

 

 

Date: _ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 2 of 2 

5.B.a

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 L

u
ci

a 
L

ea
se

_P
u

rc
h

as
e 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

 (
33

31
 :

 C
o

m
m

er
ce

 P
ar

k 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 S
al

e)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.A 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Lisa Anderson 

 
Item Title   May Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: May20220628103332245 (PDF) 

 

Summary:  May Monthly Report 

 

Recommendation:  Review and approve 

6.A

Packet Pg. 17



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ay
20

22
06

28
10

33
32

24
5 

 (
33

43
 :

 T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ay
20

22
06

28
10

33
32

24
5 

 (
33

43
 :

 T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ay
20

22
06

28
10

33
32

24
5 

 (
33

43
 :

 T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ay
20

22
06

28
10

33
32

24
5 

 (
33

43
 :

 T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ay
20

22
06

28
10

33
32

24
5 

 (
33

43
 :

 T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ay
20

22
06

28
10

33
32

24
5 

 (
33

43
 :

 T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



6.A.a

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

ay
20

22
06

28
10

33
32

24
5 

 (
33

43
 :

 T
ax

 R
ep

o
rt

)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.B 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Interlocal Agreement for Central Communications 

Amendment 

 

Attachments: Amendment to Interlocal Agreement for Central 

Communications

 (DOCX) 

 
Summary: 

It is requested that the Central Communications Interlocal Agreement entered into on June 9, 

2017 (attached) between City of Elizabeth City, Pasquotank County and Camden County be 

extended for an additional year, ending June 30, 2023.  Except for the extension of an additional 

year, all other terms and conditions of the June 9, 2017 Interlocal Agreement will remain in full 

force and effect. 

 
Recommendation: 

Approve amendment.   

6.B

Packet Pg. 25



1 
 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA             AMENDMENT TO INTERLOCAL 

                 AGREEMENT FOR CENTRAL 

PASQUOTANK COUNTY               COMMUNICATIONS 

 

 THIS AMENDMENT, made and entered into this _______ day of _________________, 

2022, by and between the CITY OF ELIZABETH CITY, a municipal corporation organized and 

existing under the laws of the State of North Carolina (hereinafter called “CITY”), 

PASQUOTANK COUNTY and CAMDEN COUNTY, bodies politic and political subdivisions 

of the State of North Carolina (hereinafter called “PASQUOTANK” and “CAMDEN”).   

 WHEREAS, the CITY, PASQUOTANK and CAMDEN entered into an Interlocal 

Agreement for Central Communications dated June 9, 2017; and 

 WHEREAS, the Interlocal Agreement is set to expire June 30, 2022; and 

 WHEREAS, the CITY, PASQUOTANK and CAMDEN desire to extend the Interlocal 

Agreement for an additional year, ending June 30, 2023; and 

 WHEREAS, except for the extension of an additional year, all other terms and 

conditions of the Interlocal Agreement dated June 9, 2017 shall remain in full force and effect. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements herein 

contained, the parties hereby amend the Interlocal Agreement as follows: 

1. The Central Communications Interlocal Agreement entered into on June 9, 2017  

between the CITY, PASQUOTANK and CAMDEN is hereby extended for an additional year, 

ending June 30, 2023.  Except for the extension of an additional year, all other terms and 

conditions of the June 9, 2017 Interlocal Agreement remain in full force and effect. 

 

    CITY OF ELIZABETH CITY 

 

    By: _______________________________  Date: ____________ 

           Mayor     Time: ____________ 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

             (SEAL) 

 

This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 

and Fiscal Control Act. 

 

    By: _______________________________ Date: ____________ 

           Finance Director    Time: ____________ 

6.B.a

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 In

te
rl

o
ca

l A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

C
en

tr
al

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

s 
 (

33
27

 :
 In

te
rl

o
ca

l A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

C
en

tr
al

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

s



2 
 

 

CAMDEN COUNTY 

 

 

    By: _______________________________  Date: ____________ 

           Chairman     Time: ____________ 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

Karen Davis 

Clerk to the Board 

 

      (SEAL) 

 

 

This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 

and Fiscal Control Act. 

 

 

    By: _______________________________ Date: _____________ 

           Finance Officer    Time: ____________ 

 

 

   

  

6.B.a

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 In

te
rl

o
ca

l A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

C
en

tr
al

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

s 
 (

33
27

 :
 In

te
rl

o
ca

l A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

C
en

tr
al

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

s



3 
 

PASQUOTANK COUNTY  

 

 

    By: _______________________________  Date: ____________ 

           Chairman     Time: ____________ 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

Lynn B. Scott 

Clerk to the Board 

 

      (SEAL) 

 

 

This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 

and Fiscal Control Act. 

 

 

    By: _______________________________ Date: _____________ 

           Finance Officer    Time: ____________ 

 

 

6.B.a

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 In

te
rl

o
ca

l A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

C
en

tr
al

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

s 
 (

33
27

 :
 In

te
rl

o
ca

l A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

C
en

tr
al

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

s



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
New Business 

 

Item Number: 6.C 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Amendment to Interlocal Agreement 

 

Attachments: Amendment to Interlocal Agreement for Emergency 

Management 

Coordination Services

 (DOCX) 

 
Summary: 

It is requested that the Emergency Management Coordination Services Interlocal Agreement 

entered into on June 9, 2017 between City of Elizabeth City, Pasquotank County and Camden 

County be extended for an additional year, ending June 30, 2023.  Except for the extension of an 

additional year, all other terms and conditions of the June 9, 2017 Interlocal Agreement remain 

in full force and effect. 
 

Recommendation: 

Approve amendment. 

6.C

Packet Pg. 29



1 
 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA             AMENDMENT TO INTERLOCAL 

                 AGREEMENT FOR 

PASQUOTANK COUNTY               EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT  

                                                                                              COORDINATION SERVICES 

 

 THIS AMENDMENT, made and entered into this _______ day of _________________, 

2022, by and between the CITY OF ELIZABETH CITY, a municipal corporation organized and 

existing under the laws of the State of North Carolina (hereinafter called “CITY”), 

PASQUOTANK COUNTY and CAMDEN COUNTY, bodies politic and political subdivisions 

of the State of North Carolina (hereinafter called “PASQUOTANK” and “CAMDEN”).   

 WHEREAS, the CITY, PASQUOTANK and CAMDEN entered into an Interlocal 

Agreement for Emergency Management Coordination Services dated June 9, 2017; and 

 WHEREAS, the Interlocal Agreement is set to expire June 30, 2022; and 

 WHEREAS, the CITY, PASQUOTANK and CAMDEN desire to extend the Interlocal 

Agreement for an additional year, ending June 30, 2023; and 

 WHEREAS, except for the extension of an additional year, all other terms and 

conditions of the Interlocal Agreement dated June 9, 2017 shall remain in full force and effect. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and agreements herein 

contained, the parties hereby amend the Interlocal Agreement as follows: 

1. The Emergency Management Coordination Services Interlocal Agreement entered  

into on June 9, 2017 between the CITY, PASQUOTANK and CAMDEN is hereby extended for 

an additional year, ending June 30, 2023.  Except for the extension of an additional year, all 

other terms and conditions of the June 9, 2017 Interlocal Agreement remain in full force and 

effect. 

 

    CITY OF ELIZABETH CITY 

 

    By: _______________________________  Date: ____________ 

           Mayor     Time: ____________ 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

                 (SEAL) 

 

This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 

and Fiscal Control Act. 

    By: _______________________________ Date: ____________ 

           Finance Director    Time: ____________ 

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 In

te
rl

o
ca

l A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

E
m

er
g

en
cy

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

C
o

o
rd

in
at

io
n

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
 (

33
28

 :
 In

te
rl

o
ca

l A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r



2 
 

CAMDEN COUNTY 

 

 

    By: _______________________________  Date: ____________ 

           Chairman     Time: ____________ 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

Karen Davis 

Clerk to the Board 

 

      (SEAL) 

 

 

This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 

and Fiscal Control Act. 

 

 

    By: _______________________________ Date: _____________ 

           Finance Officer    Time: ____________ 

 

 

   

  

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 In

te
rl

o
ca

l A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

E
m

er
g

en
cy

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

C
o

o
rd

in
at

io
n

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
 (

33
28

 :
 In

te
rl

o
ca

l A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r



3 
 

PASQUOTANK COUNTY  

 

 

    By: _______________________________  Date: ____________ 

           Chairman     Time: ____________ 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

Lynn B. Scott 

Clerk to the Board 

 

      (SEAL) 

 

 

This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 

and Fiscal Control Act. 

 

 

    By: _______________________________ Date: _____________ 

           Finance Officer    Time: ____________ 

 

 

 

6.C.a

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t 

to
 In

te
rl

o
ca

l A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r 

E
m

er
g

en
cy

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

C
o

o
rd

in
at

io
n

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
 (

33
28

 :
 In

te
rl

o
ca

l A
g

re
em

en
t 

fo
r



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 7.A 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Amber Curling, 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Planning Board 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

It is the request of Planning staff that Roger Lambertson be appointed to the Planning Board.   

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

7.A

Packet Pg. 33



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 7.B 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Nekia King, 

 Social Services 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Department of Social Services Board 

 

Attachments:  

 

Summary: 

It is the request of staff that Monique Chamblee be reappointed to the DSS Board.   

7.B

Packet Pg. 34



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 7.C 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Sarah Hill, 

 Dismal Swamp Welcome Center 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tourism Development Authority Board 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

It is the request of staff that Dismal Swamp State Park Superintendent Adam Carver be 

reappointed to the TDA Board. 

Recommendation: 

Approval. 

7.C

Packet Pg. 35



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Board Appointments 

 

Item Number: 7.D 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   NCACC Annual Conference & Legislative Goals Conference 

Voting Delegate 

 

Attachments:  

 
Summary: 

The NCACC 115th Annual Conference Business Session will be held in Cabarrus County on 

Saturday, August 13, at 2:00 p.m. Each county will be entitled to one vote on items that come 

before the membership, including the election of the NCACC Second Vice President. 

 

The NCACC Legislative Goals Conference will be held November 16-17, 2022 in Wake County.  

Delegates will vote on the slate of goal proposals that have been thoroughly vetted with the final 

slate of proposals to be brought before the Association's membership in November.   

 

In order to facilitate the voting process, each county is to designate one voting delegate (and also 

may 

assign one alternate voting delegate). 
Recommendation: 

Appoint a voting delegate and an alternate for the Annual Conference and Legislative Goals 

Conference. 

7.D

Packet Pg. 36



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.A 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 Board of Commissioners 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   BOC Meeting Minutes - June 6, 2022 

 

Attachments: bocminutes_060622 (DOCX) 

 

8.A

Packet Pg. 37



1 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

Closed Session – 6:00 PM 

Regular Meeting – 7:00 PM 

New Camden Public Library Boardroom 

118 Hwy 343 North 

 

MINUTES 

A Regular Meeting of the Camden County Board of Commissioners was held on June 6, 2022 in the boardroom of 

the New Camden Public Library in Camden, North Carolina.   

 

CALL TO ORDER  

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Ross Munro at 6:00 PM.  Also Present: Vice-Chair Tiffney White, 

Commissioners Tom White, Clayton Riggs and Randy Krainiak.   Administration Staff Present: County Manager 

Ken Bowman and Clerk to the Board Karen Davis.  County Attorney John Morrison was present for the 7:00 

Regular Meeting. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

Motion to go into Closed Session to discuss personnel and economic development. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

Motion to recess out of Closed Session. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

At 7:00 PM the Chairman reconvened the Board of Commissioners.   

 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Pastor Joe Brock gave the invocation and the Board led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

ITEM 1.  CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA        

The agenda was amended to add the Commerce Park Property Sale Public Hearing to the Consent Agenda as Item 

9.N.   

 

Motion to approve the agenda as amended. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

ITEM 2.  CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE STATEMENT     

Clerk to the Board Karen Davis read the Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement. 

 

ITEM 3.  PUBLIC COMMENTS          

 

Deborah Penwell of South Mills shared the following remarks: 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



2 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

  
 

Joseph “Butch” Flythe offered a prayer for unity. 

 

Jeanie Bundy questioned why the County Manager’s name is listed on the sign of the property that is being 

considered for the site of the new high school. Mr. Bowman explained that Mr. Williams contacted the County and 

requested assistance with marketing the property as Economic Development property.  The County did not have an 

Economic Developer on staff at that time.  The sign has been at that site for about two years.  

 

ITEM 4.  PRESENTATIONS          

 

A. Special Recognition – Chairman Ross Munro expressed appreciation to County Manager Ken Bowman for 

his service and devotion while serving as County Manager for Camden over the last nearly five years.  Mr. 

Bowman was presented a plaque on behalf of the citizens of Camden, County staff and the Board of 

Commissioners.   

 

B. Regional Advisory Council Report – Mrs. Gwen Wescott was unable to attend and give this report. 

 

C. Tourism Development Authority – Tourism Development Authority Chair Sarah Hill gave an update on the 

new Camden County signage to be placed along the following locations: 

• US 17 North near Main Street 

• US 17 South near the Virginia line 

• US 158 West / NC 34 

• US 158 East near Country Club Road 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



3 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

D. South Mills Volunteer Fire Department – Chief Tommy Banks gave the following presentation: 

  
 

  

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



4 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

 
 

Jeannie LeFrancois of South Mills spoke concerning data she has received from the National Weather Service in 

regard to stormwater events that have taken place in Camden County over recent years.  She made herself available 

to provide further information as needed.   

 

South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors 

 

The Chairman recessed the Board of Commissioners and called to order the South Camden Water & Sewer District 

Board of Directors Meeting.   

 

Public Comments – None 

 

Consideration of the Agenda  

 

Motion to approve the agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



5 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

New Business 

A. Monthly Report – Chuck Jones 

 

 
 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



6 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

 

 
 

Motion to approve the monthly report as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

Motion to adjourn the South Camden Water & Sewer Board of Directors. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

The Chairman adjourned the South Camden Water & Sewer Board of Directors and reconvened the Board of 

Commissioners. 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



7 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

ITEM 5.  PUBLIC HEARINGS          

 

A. Proposed FY 2022-2023 Budget  

 

Motion to open the public hearing for the Proposed FY 2022-2023 Budget. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tom White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

County Manager Ken Bowman presented the Budget Message and Proposed FY 2022-2023 Budget. 

 

  
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



8 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

  
 

  
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



9 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

   
 

   
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



10 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

   
 

   
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



11 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

   
 

   
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



12 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

   
 

   
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



13 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

  

  

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



14 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

   

   

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



15 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

   

   

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



16 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

   

   

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



17 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

   

 
 

Public Comments - None 

 

Motion to close the public hearing. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

Motion to add the FY 2022-2023 Budget to the agenda for consideration. 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



18 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

Motion to approve the FY 2022-2023 Budget as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tom White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

B. Proposed 2022-2026 Capital Improvement Program 

 

Motion to open the public hearing for the proposed 2022-2026 Capital Improvement Program. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

County Manager Ken Bowman presented the following Proposed 2022-2026 Capital Improvement Program: 

 

   

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



19 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

   
 

   

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



20 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

   
 

   
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



21 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

   
 

   
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



22 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

   
 

   

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



23 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

   
 

   
 

Deborah Penwell questioned the need for the placement of the administrative complex on the Capital Improvement 

Program as a Priority Level 1 in that citizens do not frequent most of the county offices on a daily basis. 

 

There was a brief exchange between Commissioner Riggs and Mrs. Penwell in regard to the condition of some of 

the county office buildings versus the condition of some of the school building classrooms.   

 

Chairman Munro inquired of Mr. Bowman the status of funds received by the county as a result of the taxes that 

were levied for the new high school and its operating expenses.  Mr. Bowman confirmed that the funds are being 

held and have not been used for any purpose.   

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



24 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

Jeannie LeFrancois added that there is a problem with black mold in the area and if it is discovered in the schools 

the state will close the schools. Ms. LeFrancois also mentioned future I-87.   

 

School Superintendent Dr. Joe Ferrell clarified that absolutely no black mold has been found in the schools. 

 

Darrell Lalonde of South Mills asked if the funds from the taxes that are being set aside for the new high school are 

being held in an interest-bearing account.  County Manager Ken Bowman responded that at this time the funds are 

not.  Chairman Munro stated that it will be researched further. 

 

Mary Cherry Tirak inquired as to the location of the future park in South Mills. 

 

Mr. Bowman explained that initially the proposal was in the location of the water plant.  The county has been in 

negotiation with South Mills Water but no decisions have been made to date.   

 

Lynn Needham, retired school employee, clarified that at one time there was mold present in a classroom in the high 

school and also at Camtech.   

 

Motion to close the public hearing. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

Motion to add the 2022-2026 Capital Improvement Program to the agenda for consideration. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

Motion to approve the 2022-2026 Capital Improvement Program as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tiffney White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

C. Proposal to Purchase Property for the New High School 

 

Motion to open the public hearing for the proposal to purchase property for the new high school. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

Chairman Ross Munro stated that the Board of Commissioners is working in consultation with the Board of 

Education on a decision to purchase the property for the new high and the Board is not moving ahead the property 

for the new high school without their agreement and buy-in or rather consulting them.   

 

County Manager Ken Bowman presented the following: 

 

Purchase of property for the new high school. It has come to the attention of the County leadership that the property 

located on RT 343 N that has been designated for the new high school is less than desirable to develop due to the 

subsoils located on the property.  After much work and various soil samplings the Manager at Risk, MB Kahn, has 

determined the cost to mitigate the site would drive the cost up significantly upwards of $4M. In addition, the 

location of the school along RT 343 N will create traffic issues for both the traveling public and those using the 

school location. 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



25 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

With that in mind, the County wanted to look for an alternate site for the new high school. The location being 

considered is located across from the County Administration Building on Hwy 158 East. This project site is located 

along the south side of NC Hwy 158 (Shortcut Road) in Camden, North Carolina. More specifically, the site is 

located approximately 0.5-miles east of the NC Hwy 158 and NC SR 34 intersection and was observed to consist of 

an open agricultural area. The property consists of 194 acres of which 60-70 acres would be designated for the new 

high school. This property will provide adequate space for the new building, parking, sports fields and expansion 

when needed.  

 

The County has already contracted with Timmons Group to conduct an environmental analysis and soil borings on 

this site to ensure the land is satisfactory for the new high school (see attached). 

 

On May 2, 2022 the Board of Commissioners voted to set a Public Hearing for June 6, 2022 to receive citizen input 

on the proposal to purchase this property for the new high school. 

 

Motion to close the public hearing. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

County Attorney John Morrison clarified that the County has made no commitment and signed no contract to buy 

the property.  Mr. Morrison explained that the Board of Commissioners and Board of Education had met the 

previous week to discuss the property and more information is needed from additional experts before a decision is 

made.  The County is under no obligation to purchase the entire acreage but favorable options have been offered to 

the county in regard to the purchase that could benefit the County in the area of Economic Development.   

 

Board of Education member Jason Banks inquired if another public hearing will be held after more studies are 

completed, additional consultation has taken place and information can be released to the public.   

 

Chairman Munro responded in the affirmative. 

 

Mr. Morrison clarified that public hearings are at the discretion of the Board. 

 

ITEM 6.  OLD BUSINESS          

 

A. Preliminary Plan Keeter Barn Landing Major Subdivision – Amber Curling 

 

Keeter Barn Landing LLC is requesting Preliminary Plan approval for Keeter Barn Landing Major Subdivision.  The 

following items have been submitted with the package:  Land Use Application/Preliminary Plan/Staff Findings/TRC 

inputs/Deed/Neighborhood Meeting Results.  The Subdivision consists of 37 single family lots located on the south 

west corner of Keeter Barn Rd and US Hwy 17 in the South Mills Township. 

 

On March 16, 2022 the Planning Board with a 3-2 vote recommend denial of the Keeter Barn Landing Major 

Subdivision application request. 

 

A Public Hearing for Keeter Barn Landing LLC requesting Preliminary Plan approval for Keeter Barn Landing 

Major Subdivision was held on April 4th 2022.  The Board of Commissioners voted to table considerations to the 

May 2nd 2022 Board of Commissioners meeting. At the May 2nd 2022 meeting the Board of Commissioners voted to 

table considerations until the June 6, 2022 Meeting. 

 

Commissioner Krainiak inquired if the concerns in regard to the helicopter landing pad had been resolved.  Mrs. 

Curling confirmed that those issues had been resolved. 

 

Commissioner Riggs asked if anything had changed since the Planning Board voted to deny approval with a 3-2 

vote.  Mrs. Curling responded that nothing in the packet had changed since the Planning Board meeting.   

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



26 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

Commissioner Krainiak asked for the reason of the Planning Board’s denial of the request.  Mrs. Curling responded 

that the comments and concerns of the Technical Review Committee were taken into consideration.   

 

Commissioner Tiffney White inquired as to any changes in the sewer plans since the last meeting.  Mrs. Curling 

responded that it had been discussed and a resolution in process to encourage connection to the sewer.  For this 

project the developer it is not financially feasible to connect to county sewer.  She confirmed that the change in 

sewer connection fees will be on the July agenda for a Public Hearing.   

 

Jason Mizelle with Timmons Group addressed the Board on behalf of Keeter Barn LLC.  He explained that as the 

Board requested the applicant researched the costs associated with putting in the infrastructure required to connect to 

the County’s sewer system.  The estimated costs were $400k - $450k, which is $11k to $12k per lot – all upfront 

costs prior to drawing the first building permit; as opposed to advanced septic systems that could be done on an as-

permitted basis.  In addition, there are required tap fees of $3500 for a three-quarter inch tap and then the $7400 

allocation fee for the service.   

 

Motion to approve Ordinance 2022-04-01 / Major Conservation Subdivision Application (UDO 2021-08-19). 

RESULT: PASSED [3-2] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Randy Krainiak 

NOES: Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White 

 

A poll of the Board requested by the Chairman on this vote resulted in the following: 

Commissioner Tom White voted aye. 

Commissioner Randy Krainiak voted aye. 

Chairman Ross Munro voted aye. 

Vice Chair Tiffney White voted nay. 

Commissioner Clayton Riggs voted nay. 

 

ITEM 7.  NEW BUSINESS          

 

A. Tax Report – Lisa Anderson 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



27 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

 
 

 
 

30 Largest Unpaid – Real 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



28 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Real 

 
 

30 Largest Unpaid – Personal 

 
 

30 Oldest Unpaid – Personal 

 
 

Motion to approve the tax report as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



29 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

B. Resolution 2022-06-01: Salaries & Compensation for Various Boards and Commissions 

 

   

 
 

Motion to change the Planning Board salary from $30 to $50 per meeting and to adopt Resolution 2022-06-01 

with that amendment.  

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tom White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

  

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



30 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

ITEM 8.  BOARD APPOINTMENTS         

 

A. Library Board 

 

Motion to approve the appointment of Christy Pankey to the Library Board. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Tom White 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

  

ITEM 9.  CONSENT AGENDA          

 

A. BOC Meeting Minutes – May 2, 2022 

B. BOC Meeting Minutes – May 4, 2022 

C. Budget Amendments 

 

   
 

 
 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



31 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

D. Tax Collection Report 

 

 
 

E. DMV Report 

 

 
 

 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



32 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

F. Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 
 

G. Refunds Over $100 

 
 

H. Vehicle Refunds Over $100 

 
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



33 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

I. Surplus Property 

 
 

J. Audit Engagement Letters – On file in the Finance office, incorporated herein by reference. 

 

K. Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Certification Standards and Appointments 

  
 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



34 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

 
 

L. Mangum Holdings Lease Extension – Approval of a 1-year lease of the 10-acre parcel in Camden 

Commerce Park at an annual rent rate of Twelve Thousand Dollars ($12,000) payable in 12 equal monthly 

installments beginning on the first day of each month starting July 1, 2022 and continuing each month 

thereafter through this term. 

 

M. Set Public Hearing for July 5, 2022 for a Fee Schedule Amendment – The Board of Commissioners will 

hold a public hearing to receive input on proposed changes to the sewer and water rates on the Camden 

County Schedule of Fees. 

 

N. Set Public Hearing for July 5, 2022 to receive public input on the sale of property within Camden 

Commerce Park. 

 

Motion to approve the Consent Agenda as amended. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Ross Munro 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

  

ITEM 10.  COUNTY MANAGER’S REPORT        

 

County Manager Ken Bowman included the following in his report: 

• Library Ribbon Cutting ceremony was very well attended.  When the library reopens please stop in and 

take a tour of the beautiful facility that the County will enjoy for many years to come.   

• Today is the 78th anniversary of D-Day and the Battle of Normandy.   

• Father’s Day – June 19th. 

• Next Board of Commissioners Meeting – July 5, 2022 

• Thank you to the Board of Commissioners for the great professional working relationship we have enjoyed 

over the last five years and the friendships we have developed.  I can truly say this is one of the very best 

groups of people I’ve ever worked with.  You welcomed Brenda and I with open arms.  You treated us like 

family.  I’ve always said that public service is a tough job and if you don’t know that you can witness it 

tonight, some good times and some bad.  We’ve had some wins, we’ve had some losses.  Some days there’s 

a lot of stress and anxiety.  That being said, we always worked together for the good of Camden County.  It 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



35 

 

 

Camden County Board of Commissioners 

June 6, 2022 

made getting up every day and coming to work an enjoyable experience.  I’m looking forward to my 

retirement but we’ll surely miss working with you, the wonderful staff and the citizens of Camden County.  

Thank you very much. 

 

ITEM 11.  COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS         

None. 

 

ITEM 12.  INFORMATION, REPORTS & MINUTES FROM OTHER AGENCIES    

Provided for information only: 

A. Register of Deeds Report 

B. Library Report 

 

ITEM 13. OTHER MATTERS          

None. 

 

 

ITEM 14. ADJOURN           

 

Motion to adjourn. 

RESULT: PASSED [5-0] 

MOVER: Clayton Riggs 

AYES: Tom White, Ross Munro, Clayton Riggs, Tiffney White, Randy Krainiak 

 

There being no further matters for discussion Chairman Ross Munro adjourned the meeting at 8:41 PM.   

 

Board of Equalization and Review 

 

Chairman Munro called to the order the Board of Equalization and Review. 

 

There being no cases to come before the Board, Chairman Munro adjourned the Board of Equalization and Review 

at 8:43 PM.   

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

            

Ross B. Munro, Chairman    Karen M. Davis 

Camden County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board of Commissioners 

 

 

8.A.a

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 b

o
cm

in
u

te
s_

06
06

22
  (

33
24

 :
 B

O
C

 M
ee

ti
n

g
 M

in
u

te
s 

- 
Ju

n
e 

6,
 2

02
2)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.B 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   School Budget Amendments 

 

Attachments: School Budget Amendments (PDF) 

 

8.B

Packet Pg. 73



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



8.B.a

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
  (

33
33

 :
 S

ch
o

o
l B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

ts
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.C 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Tax Collection Report 

 

Attachments: Tax Collection Report (PDF) 

 

8.C

Packet Pg. 110



8.C.a

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
  (

33
32

 :
 T

ax
 C

o
lle

ct
io

n
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.D 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   DMV Monthly Report 

 

Attachments: DMV MONTHLY REPORT AUG, 2022 RENEWALS

 (PDF) 

 

Summary:   DMV Monthly Report August, 22 Renewals Due 9/15/22 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

8.D

Packet Pg. 112



8.D.a

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

M
V

 M
O

N
T

H
L

Y
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 A

U
G

, 2
02

2 
R

E
N

E
W

A
L

S
  (

33
20

 :
 D

M
V

 M
o

n
th

ly
 R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.E 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: REFUNDS OVER $100.00 MARCH, 22 (PDF) 

 

Summary:   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 March, 22 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

8.E

Packet Pg. 114



8.E.a

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

E
F

U
N

D
S

 O
V

E
R

 $
10

0.
00

 M
A

R
C

H
, 2

2 
 (

33
22

 :
 V

eh
ic

le
 R

ef
u

n
d

s 
O

ve
r 

$1
00

.0
0 

- 
M

ar
ch

 2
02

2)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.F 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Teri Smith, 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Teri Smith 

 
Item Title   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 

 

Attachments: REFUNDS OVER $100.00 MAY, 2022 (PDF) 

 

Summary:   Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 May, 22 

 

Recommendation:   Review and Approve 

8.F

Packet Pg. 116



8.F.a

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

E
F

U
N

D
S

 O
V

E
R

 $
10

0.
00

 M
A

Y
, 2

02
2 

 (
33

21
 :

 V
eh

ic
le

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

O
ve

r 
$1

00
.0

0 
- 

M
ay

 2
02

2)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.G 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Lisa Anderson, Tax Administrator 

 Taxes 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Pickups, Releases & Refunds 

 

Attachments: Pickups, Releases & Refunds (PDF) 

 

8.G

Packet Pg. 118



8.G.a

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ic
ku

p
s,

 R
el

ea
se

s 
&

 R
ef

u
n

d
s 

 (
33

46
 :

 P
ic

ku
p

s,
 R

el
ea

se
s 

&
 R

ef
u

n
d

s)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.H 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Ken Bowman, 

 Administration 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Surplus Property Request 

 

Attachments: Surplus Property Request (PDF) 

 

8.H

Packet Pg. 120



8.H.a

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
rp

lu
s 

P
ro

p
er

ty
 R

eq
u

es
t 

 (
33

34
 :

 S
u

rp
lu

s 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 R
eq

u
es

t)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.I 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Karen Davis, Clerk to the Board 

 NC Cooperative Extension 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Summer Camp Assistant Contract 

 

Attachments: Summer Camp Assistant Contract (PDF) 

 

8.I

Packet Pg. 122



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
m

m
er

 C
am

p
 A

ss
is

ta
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

33
35

 :
 S

u
m

m
er

 C
am

p
 A

ss
is

ta
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
m

m
er

 C
am

p
 A

ss
is

ta
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

33
35

 :
 S

u
m

m
er

 C
am

p
 A

ss
is

ta
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
m

m
er

 C
am

p
 A

ss
is

ta
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

33
35

 :
 S

u
m

m
er

 C
am

p
 A

ss
is

ta
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



8.I.a

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

u
m

m
er

 C
am

p
 A

ss
is

ta
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

33
35

 :
 S

u
m

m
er

 C
am

p
 A

ss
is

ta
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.J 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Tim White, Parks & Recreation Director 

 Senior Center 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Annual Senior Nutrition Contract 

 

Attachments: Senior Nutrition Contract (DOC) 

 

8.J

Packet Pg. 127



 1 

 

ALBEMARLE  COMMISSION 

SENIOR  NUTRITION  CONTRACT 

 

 This Agreement entered into as of this first day of July, 2022 by and between 

CAMDEN  COUNTY  (hereinafter referred to as Contractor), and the Albemarle 

Commission, (hereinafter referred to as AC), with offices located at 512 South Church 

St., Hertford,  North Carolina, WITNESSETH THAT; 

 

 WHEREAS, AC wishes to make available certain services to elderly residents 

within a service area hereafter described; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the Contractor warrants that it is capable of providing the services 

hereafter described; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the Contractor desires to assist AC in this endeavor; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto do agree as follows: 

 

1. Employment of Contractor:  AC hereby agrees to engage the Contractor to 

 perform the services hereinafter set forth. 

 

2. Time of Performance:  The services of the Contractor are to commence on 

 July 1, 2022, and shall be completed by June 30, 2023. 

 

3. Scope and location of Services:  The Contractor shall do, perform, and carry out 

 in a satisfactory and proper manner, as determined by AC, the agreements and 

 assurances required in the Request for Proposal and the services specified in No. 

 35—Special Conditions. 

 

4. Personnel:  The Contractor represents that it has, or will secure at its own 

 expenses, all personnel required in performing the services under this Agreement.  

 Such personnel shall not be employees of, or have any contractual relationship 

 with AC.  All personnel engaged in the work shall be fully qualified. 

 

It is understood and agreed that LAURA JOLLEY shall represent the Contractor 

as Project Manager in the performance of this Agreement.  Any change in such 

Project Managers shall be subject to the written approval of AC. 

 

5. Compensation:  The Contractor and AC expressly understand and agree that in no 

event will the total compensation and reimbursement paid thereunder by the AC 

exceed the maximum of  Eight Thousand Two Hundred and Seventy One 

Dollars and 72 Cents  ($8,271.72) for 999 hours (4 hrs per day) of Nutrition 

Service and shall constitute full and complete compensation for the Contractor’s 

services hereunder.  (This is a part-time position)  

 

8.J.a

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

33
44

 :
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



 2 

6. Reimbursement Rate Per Unit of Service:  Albemarle Commission will reimburse 

the Contractor $8.28  for each hour of Nutrition Service served to eligible clients, 

such units of service being defined in No. 35 – Special Conditions. 

 

7.  Reprogramming of Funds:  It is understood and agreed that, in the event that the 

 amount of funds received from the North Carolina Division of Aging is reduced, 

 AC may in turn, decrease the total compensation and reimbursement to be paid 

 hereunder and in accordance with Paragraph 14, changes in the Scope of Services.  

 

8. Change of Reimbursement.  At its sole discretion, AC may re-negotiate the 

 reimbursement shown in Paragraph 6 of this Agreement.  However, in no case 

 will AC increase the overall amount shown in Paragraph 5. 

 

 The parties agree they will consider increasing the reimbursement rate only under 

 two circumstances: 

 

 a) Upon a showing by Contractor that actual costs have increased due to 

  factors beyond Contractor’s control (e.g., increases in gasoline costs, 

  union settlement on wages, etc.); or 

 

 b) Upon a showing by Contractor that actual costs have increased due to a 

  sudden increase in client load (e.g., due to a disaster).  In the event that the 

  reimbursement rate is increased, the total units of service to be delivered 

  will be correspondingly decreased. 

 

  The parties further agree that AC shall have the right to decrease the 

  reimbursement rate under any circumstances which show that actual costs  

  are less than projected; including, but not limited to, circumstances in 

  which: 

 

 a) Overall costs of providing service are shown to be less than forecast in 

  the Contractor’s original bid for this service; or 

 

 b) The Contractor fails to document the required cost-sharing, such that the 

  AC reimbursement rate exceeds 100 percent of service costs.  In the event 

  The reimbursement rates are decreased, AC may, at its option, increase  

  The total number of units of service to be delivered. 

 

9. Method of Payment:  After the first month, Contractor shall submit a monthly 

 

 report to AC on the number of service units delivered and capital cost through  

 the end of prior month for reimbursement. 

 

10. Documentation of Expenses:  Contractor shall maintain full and complete  

 documentation of all expenses associated with performing the scope of work  

 under the contract. Expenses documentation shall include:  time sheets for AC 

8.J.a

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

33
44

 :
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



 3 

 clients; receipts for any supplies purchased for use on this contract; any applicable  

 subcontract expenditures; and such other documentation necessary to substantiate 

 overall costs of delivering the contracted service (including Contractor  

 contribution as well as amounts reimbursed by AC). 

 

11. Payment by Service Recipient:  No individual receiving services under the 

 terms of this Agreement shall be required to pay any part of the cost of the  

 service.  However, recipients shall be given the opportunity by the Contractor 

 to make some contribution for the service in a manner approved by the AC. 

 

 Contractor shall post a notice in a conspicuous place, stating that no charge is 

 Made for the service, but that contributions will be accepted. Contractor shall 

 furnish envelopes to all clients for confidential contributions.  Contractor 

 shall offer a locked box in a convenient location for confidential deposit of 

 envelopes.   

 

12. Cost Sharing:  Cost Sharing is any money received by Contractor as a 

 direct result of contract activity.  Contractor shall maintain daily records of  

activity, Contractor shall maintain daily records of activity.  Program income shall 

be used in the same year it is received to provide additional services. 

 

13. Monitoring, Auditing and Reporting:  The Contractor agrees to submit to audit 

 by AC, the State of North Carolina, or the federal government for a three year 

 period following final payment under the terms of this Agreement.  The  

 Contractor agrees to permit monitoring by AC, its staff and appropriate  

 representatives, and to comply with such reporting procedures as may be 

 established by AC.  The Contractor further agrees that all pertinent financial 

 records shall be made available for copying upon request by AC, the state or 

 federal government, or their agents. 

 

 It is understood and agreed that the report procedures established by AC may 

 include, but not be limited to, the names and addresses of individuals receiving 

 services under the terms of this contract, with the understanding that no  

 personal information obtained from any individual will be disclosed by AC 

 in a form which allows identification of the individual, without the written 

 consent of the individual. 

 

 It is understood and agreed that the report procedures established by AC may 

 also include actual costs incurred per unit of service including both AC costs 

 and contractor contributions.   

 

 It is further understood that the agency is responsible to AC for clarifying any 

 audit exceptions that may arise from AC independent audit, the Department of 

 Human Resources audit, or any federally conducted audit.  AC requires the 

 Contractor to send a copy of their audit when received from the independent 

 auditors.  In addition, contractors are responsible for paying any governmental  

8.J.a

Packet Pg. 130

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

33
44

 :
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



 4 

 funds that may be part of the audit exception. 

 

14. Changes:  AC may, from time to time, require changes in the Scope of  Services 

 to be performed.  Such changes, including any increase or decrease in the amount 

 of the Contractor’s compensation which is mutually agreed upon between AC and 

 the Contractor, shall be incorporated in written amendments to this Agreement. 

 

15. Termination of Agreement for Cause:  If through any cause the Contractor shall 

 fail to fulfill in timely and proper manner its obligations under this Agreement, or 

 if the Contractor shall violate any of the covenants, agreements or stipulations of 

 this Agreement, AC shall thereupon have the right to terminate this Agreement 

 by giving written notice to the Contractor of such termination and specifying the 

 effective date thereof.  The date of notice shall be at least five (5) days before the 

 AC effective date of such termination. 

 

 In the event of termination, such data, studies, surveys, drawings, maps and 

reports prepared by the Contractor shall, at the option of AC, become its property 

and the Contractor shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for 

any satisfactory work completed on such documents and other materials.  Client 

files of the agency, developed under this contract shall become the property of the 

AC upon completion and/or termination of this contract. 

 

 Notwithstanding the above, the Contractor shall not be relieved of liability to AC 

by virtue of any breach of the Agreement by the Contractor, and AC may 

withhold any payments to the Contractor for the purpose of set-off until such time 

as the exact amount of damages due AC from the Contractor is determined. 

 

16. Cancellation for Convenience of AC:  AC may cancel this Agreement at any time 

by giving written notice to the Contractor of such cancellation and specifying the 

effective date of such cancellation.  If the Agreement is canceled by AC as 

provided herein, the Contractor will be paid for work satisfactorily completed. 

 

17. Disputes:  Any disputes which arise in the interpretation of this contract shall be 

resolved in the following manner: 

 

 a) The Contractor shall submit a letter to AC specifying the nature of the 

dispute asking for resolution of the dispute. 

 

 b) The Executive Director of the AC will meet with the Contractor to resolve 

the dispute.  The Executive Director of the AC will document the resolution in a 

letter to the Project Manager. 

 

 c) If the Contractor is dissatisfied with the resolution of the dispute decided 

by the AC Executive Director, the Contractor may appeal the Executive 

Director’s decision in writing to the AC Budget and Personnel Committee. 

 

8.J.a

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

33
44

 :
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



 5 

 d) The AC Budget and Personnel Committee will consider the appeal at its 

next scheduled meeting, which shall occur no less than 10 days following receipt 

of the written appeal request.  The decision of the Budget and Personnel 

Committee is final.   

 

18. Subcontracting:  None of the work or service covered by this Agreement shall be 

subcontracted without the prior written approval of AC.  All approved 

subcontracts must conform to the applicable requirements set forth in this 

Agreement and must attach and include by reference Appendix A -  Scope of 

Services.  

 

19. Compliance with Service Standards and Required Procedures:  Contractor shall 

perform the services set forth in this Agreement in compliance with applicable 

standards and procedures specified in Appendix A – Scope of Services.  

Contractor further agrees to comply with applicable standards for this service 

which are, or may be, specified by the North Carolina Division of Aging, any 

other State of North Carolina agency, the Division of Aging Policy Manual, and 

the AC Policy Manual. 

 

20. Service Priorities:  Contractor  shall give priority for service to those older people 

with the greatest social and economic need.  Where the nature of the service 

allows, Contractor shall make special efforts to serve the moderately impaired, 

isolated and homebound elderly on a priority basis, as set out in the proposal and 

as indicated in the service standards established by the Division of Aging. 

 

21. Equal Opportunity and Affirmative Action:  In carrying out this contract, 

Contractor shall deny none of the benefits or services of the program to any 

eligible recipient on the grounds of age, sex, religion, race, color, handicap, or 

national origin. 

 

 The Contractor also agrees not to discriminate against any employee or applicant 

for employment because of age, race, color, religion, sex, handicap or national 

origin.  The Contractor shall take affirmative action to insure that applicants are 

employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to 

their age, race, color, religion, sex, handicap, or national origin.  Such action shall 

include, but not be limited to:  employment or termination, rates of pay or other 

forms of compensation and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 

 

 The Contractor shall, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed 

by, or on behalf of the Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive 

consideration for employment without regard to age, race, color, religion, sex, 

handicap, or national origin. 

 

 It is further agreed by the Parties that the Contractor shall take affirmative action 

to solicit subcontractors with or purchases from minority business enterprises as 

defined in the Public Works Employment Act of 1977, 42 U.S.C. 6705 (f) (2), 

8.J.a

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

33
44

 :
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



 6 

where such subcontracting or purchasing, if any, is or may be undertaken under 

the terms of this Agreement. 

 

22. Confidentiality:  Any reports, recipient information, data, or other materials given 

to, or prepared or assembled by the Contractor under this Agreement which AC 

requests to be kept confidential, shall not be made available to any individual or 

organization by the Contractor without prior written approval of AC. 

 

23. Identification of Documents:  All reports, maps, and other documents completed 

as part of this Agreement, other than documents exclusively for internal use 

within AC, shall carry the following statement on the front cover, or a title page 

containing the name of AC. 

 

 THE PREPARATION OF THIS (Report, Document, Etc.) WAS FINANCED IN 

PART THROUGH A FEDERAL GRANT BY THE NORTH CAROLINA 

DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES, DIVISION OF AGING, UNDER 

THE PROVISIONS OF TITLE III, OLDER AMERICANS ACT OF 1965, AS 

AMENDED. 

 

24. Licenses and Permits:  Contractor shall maintain all required licenses, permits, 

bonds, and insurance required for carrying out the services in Appendix A.  the 

Contractor shall notify the AC immediately if any required licenses or other 

permits are canceled, suspended, or otherwise ineffective.  Failure to maintain 

proper licenses permits, bonds and insurance shall be a basis for AC disallowing 

all or part of payments under this contract or for termination of this agreement for 

cause. 

 

25. Insurance:  Notwithstanding any other insurance requirements, Contractor shall, 

within ten (10) days of the effective date of this Agreement, provide AC with a 

certificate of insurance for public liability insurance in the minimum amount of 

One Hundred Thousand/Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000/$300,000).  

If Contractor uses a vehicle in fulfilling its duties under this Agreement, 

Contractor shall also provide evidence of automobile insurance in the minimum 

amount of Twenty-Five Thousand/Fifty Thousand Dollars ($25,000/$50,000 

liability insurance and Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000) property insurance.  

Failure to provide evidence of insurance shall be deemed an automatic violation 

of this Agreement and could therefore lead to termination of the Agreement by 

AC.  The Contractor shall hold AC harmless for any damages to the person or 

property of any individual or organization as the result of the execution of the 

scope of service to be performed under this Agreement. 

 

26. Conflict of Interest:  The Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest and 

shall not acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any 

manner or degree with the performance of services required to be performed 

under this Agreement.  The Contractor further covenants that, in the performance 

of this Agreement, no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

8.J.a

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

33
44

 :
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



 7 

 

27. Interest of Members of AC and Others:  No officer, member, or employee of AC 

and no member of its governing body, and no other public official of the 

governing body of the locality or localities in which the project is situated or 

being carried out who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the review or 

approval of this project, shall participate in any decision relating to this 

Agreement which affects his or her personal interest or have any personal or 

pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof.  

 

28. Officials not to Benefit:  No member of or delegate to Congress, or resident 

commissioner, shall be admitted to any share or part of this contract, or to any 

benefit that may arise therefrom. 

 

29. Assignability:  The Contract shall not assign, sublet, or transfer all or any portion 

of its interest in this Agreement without the prior written approval of the 

Agency’s Executive Director or his authorized agent. 

 

30. Resources Development:  The Contractor shall investigate other agencies and 

resources providing services to the elderly and shall coordinate its own services to 

minimize overlap and duplication. 

 

31. Disaster Assistance:  In the event that elderly individuals are endangered by the 

occurrence of a tornado, fire, flood, severe temperature extremes, or other 

disaster-related situation, the Contractor shall cooperate with requests for 

assistance from AC on behalf of the elderly individuals. 

 

32. Attendance at AC Meetings:  The Contractor, upon request of AC, shall 

attend any committee or special meeting relating to the project, or staff 

development training.  

 

33. Participant Input:  The Contractor shall, with the assistance of AC, develop a 

procedure for providing elderly service recipients with an opportunity to assess 

and evaluate the program.  This assessment shall be performed on a regular basis. 

 

34. Applicable Laws, Rules, and Regulations:  This contract shall be deemed to have 

been executed and performed in the State of North Carolina, and all questions of 

interpretation and construction shall be construed by the laws of such State.  In 

addition, Contractor shall be governed by all applicable Federal, State, and Local 

rules, regulations and policies. 

 

35. Special Conditions: 

 

 

 

 

 

8.J.a

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

33
44

 :
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



 8 

Appendix A- 

CONGREGATE NUTRITION 

 

Service Definition: 

The provision of a meal in a group setting. 

 

Unit of Service: 

One hour –four hours daily. 

 

Service Objective: 

To promote the health and well being of older people through the provision of nutritious 

meals and opportunities for social and recreational services and access to other services. 

 

Service Activities: 

Prepare specific congregate meal site(s) at least 5 days per week for dining. 

 

• Set up tables, chairs, place settings, and table condiments. 

• Clean up after meals, washing non-disposable items and dispose of litter and 

garbage.   

• Welcome participants to site. 

• Station staff, both paid and volunteers, to keep attendance records and to 

encourage donations to program. 

 

Food Service: 

• Receive meals from caterer or central kitchen, take and record temperatures of all 

hot and cold food items. 

• Prepare food service line for serving meals. 

• Supervise portioning of food onto plate by donated and volunteer staff, take food 

temperatures again immediately before portioning. 

• Provide assistance to participants who have difficulty walking or carrying trays. 

• Review and maintain records on food quality and quantity. 

 

 Coordinate Services: 

• Arrange transportation to site for participants. 

• Recruit and train volunteers. 

• Provide grocery shopping assistance and/or education at least 2 times per month. 

• Provide for nutrition education at least 2 times per month. 

• Provide for health and social service information at least once per month. 

• Provide an exercise program one time per week. 

• Provide activities daily. 

• Outreach activities will be conducted to identify and attract health impaired, 

socially and/or economically need persons in need of nutrition services. 

 

Preferred Target Groups:  Persons who are health impaired, and who are in need of 

nutritional supports or those older persons whose independent living arrangements lack 

8.J.a

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

33
44

 :
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



 9 

proper facilities for meal preparation.  Those persons who are ambulatory, but lack 

sufficient health and/or motivation to prepare meals regularly. 

 

Locale of Service: 

• At an approved public or private community facility with the following 

characteristics. 

• Has been approved by the local health department. 

• Has been inspected by the local fire department and meets all local and state fire 

codes. 

• Has been approved in writing by the Area Agency on Aging prior to opening. 

• Is in compliance with 504 Regulations. 

• Is located near concentrations of preferred target group persons. 

• Must have at least 12-14 square feet per person excluding halls, bathrooms, 

kitchen areas. 

• Must be a facility where all eligible persons feel free to visit and will not offend 

their cultural and ethnic preferences. 

• Must have adequate number of tables and chairs appropriate for older adults. 

• Must have at least 2 exits which are unlocked during hours of operation. 

• Must have adequate parking. 

• Must have a safe and appropriate place to mount and dismount from vans or other 

group transportation vehicles. 

• Must be heated during colder months to at least 72° F. while participants are 

present. 

• There must be a “termination of services” policy on file for each participant. 

 

Access to Services: 

• Participants will be referred to service by self, friend, neighbor, or a community 

resource. 

 

Delivery Characteristics: 

• Meals shall be served at least 5 days per week at the site. 

• There shall be a feedback mechanism to obtain information on menu preference 

of participants, and other issues at site. 

• The approved menu shall be publicized one week in advance at the site and shall 

be identified as the Nutrition Program for the elderly menu and shall specify 

serving dates. 

• Each meal shall provide at least 1/3 of the current recommended daily dietary 

allowances Food and Nutrition boards of the National Research Council and shall 

meet the following meal pattern when plated for each participant. 

 

a)   2 ounces cooked edible portion of meat, fish, fowl, eggs; cooked dry beans or 

cheese  may be used for a maximum of 4 times per month as substitute for one 

ounce of meat; textured vegetable protein may only be used as specified in the 

Division of Aging Manual. 

 

8.J.a

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

33
44

 :
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



 10 

b) Two, one-half cup servings of vegetables, fruits, and full strength fruit/vegetable 

juices.  There must be one cold source of Vitamin C which provides at least 1/3 

RDA of Vitamin C daily. 

 

c) One serving enriched or whole grain bread, biscuits, rolls, muffins, sandwich 

buns, cornbread, other hot breads or enriched or whole grain cereals or cereal 

products such as rice, macaroni, dumplings, pancakes, and waffles. 

 

d) One teaspoon of butter or fortified margarine in a packaged chip. 

 

e) One, one-half cup serving of dessert which may be fruit, full strength fruit juice, 

pudding, gelatin, ice cream, ice milk, sherbet, cake, pie, cookies and similar 

foods. 

 

f) One-half pint of fortified whole, skim, or low-fat milk, buttermilk, yogurt, or 

cheese (3 ozs.). 

 

g) Fruit or juice used as a dessert may not be counted toward the two servings of 

vegetables and fruits. 

 

• Contractor shall tell the participants about agency procedures for service, 

confidentiality, waiting lists, service priorities, complaint and grievance, and 

other matters germane to the participants’ decision to accept service, and 

about his opportunity to make a voluntary contribution to the program. 

• Every effort shall be made to make the dining room and meals attractive. 

• A completed calendar of site activities and programs must be posted at the 

beginning of the month. 

• Emergency plans must be developed for each site for medical emergencies 

and to evacuate the site in case of fire or explosion. 

• The contractor shall provide adequate staff to operate the program including a 

paid contract manager and a paid site manager for the site. 

• The site manager may be paid from Title III funds for no more than 4 hours 

per day and shall be responsible for site operations. 

• Must be able to work well with older adults. 

• Must be able to keep accurate records. 

• Must be able to supervise volunteers. 

• The contractor must develop a plan to recruit, orient, train, and recognize 

volunteers. 

• Minimum orientation and training shall include: 

 

Contract Manager: Administrative procedures, record keeping systems, reporting, 

food safety. 

 

Site Managers: Site procedures, orientation and training for specific volunteer 

activities. 

 

8.J.a

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

33
44

 :
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



 11 

All Staff: First aid, cardio-pulmonary resuscitation, physiology of aging, 

fire/disaster evacuation, shall attend all training required for specific staff 

categories provided by the Division of Aging and/or Area Agency on Aging. 

 

• All foods must be stored, prepared, held and served in a manner to 

preserve optimum flavor and appearance, while retaining nutrients and 

food value. 

• Staff serving food must use hygienic techniques and practices in all 

handling of the food. 

• Food temperatures must be maintained at safe levels (hot 140° +, cold 

45°-) throughout all processes from storage through serving. 

• Contractor must abide by food safety practices required in 10NCAC 

Section of .0400. 

 

Prohibited Services: 

• Cannot provide meals to residents of long-term care facilities, guests, 

handicapped persons under age 60, adult day care participants and paid staff 

under age 60 without reimbursement of the full cost of the meal. 

• Except on emergency basis, nutrition site(s) may not be closed or combined on a 

temporary or permanent basis without prior written approval from the Area 

Agency on Aging. 

• May not enter into contracts with profit making organizations without prior 

written approval from the Area Agency on Aging. 

 

Administrative Requirements: 

• Adequate records shall be maintained to document program activities and shall 

include: 

• participants’ intake record 

• participants’ attendance records 

• meals served records 

• menu served with substitutions, dates, and justification noted 

• meal receipt/delivery slips 

• program income record 

• employment records including affirmative action documentation 

• Shall follow general recognized accounting procedures outlined in CRF Part 74 of 

all funds including participant contributions. 

• All participants’ records shall be treated as confidential. 

• File all required reports on time. 

• Train staff to make appropriate referrals. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.J.a

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

33
44

 :
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



 12 

Home-Delivered 

 

 In administering the Home-Delivered Meals Program, Contractor agrees to 

appoint or employ a person to do the following duties: 

 

1) Recruit, maintain, schedule, and supervise volunteers to deliver meals. 

2) Order, receive, and check meals received. 

3) Keep daily records, which will include, but not be limited to: 

 

a) Daily Nutrition Service Record 

b) Required Temperature Reports 

c) Volunteer Hours Reports 

 

4) Receive requests for meals from potential clients. 

5) Collect all project income per the Consumer Contributions Policy and 

Procedures.  

6) Report all legitimate complaints to the Albemarle Commission’s Home- 

 Delivered Meals Coordinator. 

 

The Albemarle Commission’s Home Delivered Meals Coordinator/Volunteer 

Administrator  will be responsible for: 

 

a) Supervising in the daily operation of home-delivered meals 

 activities. 

b) Providing whatever assistance and support is necessary to recruit 

 and maintain volunteers, i.e., making presentations to civic or 

 community groups, etc., providing printed material, etc. 

c) Processing all requests for meals, determining eligibility, and 

 making all placements to the program. 

d) Revising and updating delivery routes to reflect additions, 

 deletions, or other changes. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.J.a

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

33
44

 :
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



 13 

 

 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, AC and the Contractor have executed this Agreement as of 

the date first above written. 

 

_____________________________   Albemarle Commission  

                (Contractor) 

 

BY: _________________________   BY:_________________________ 

(Authorized Official)       (Executive Director) 

 

DATE: ______________________   BY:_________________________ 

            (Area Agency on Aging Director) 

 

       DATE: ______________________ 

 

 

 This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner 

required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal Control Act. 

 

       ______________________________ 

           (Commission’s Finance Officer) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

  

8.J.a

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

en
io

r 
N

u
tr

it
io

n
 C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
 (

33
44

 :
 A

n
n

u
al

 S
en

io
r 

N
u

tr
it

io
n

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.K 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Amber Curling, 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Set Public Hearing - UDO Text Amendment 

 

Attachments: AgendaSummary_TextAmendments (DOCX) 

OrdinanceForTextAmendments_8-1-22 (DOCX) 

 

Agenda summary and supporting documentation attached. 

8.K

Packet Pg. 141



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Meeting Date:   July 5, 2022 

 

Attachments:   Text Amendments 

 

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

Item Title:  Text Amendments to Camden County, NC Code of Ordinances 

 

 

Summary: 

 

The attached proposed text amendments to the Camden County Ordinances is divided into three sections 

as follows: 

 

The first section is a text amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance 151.3.8 to comply with 

FEMA 2020 model Ordinance updates.   

 

The second section is a proposed text amendment to the Unified Development Ordinance 151.3.8 

stormwater Management Plan Requirements and Stormwater Drainage Design Manual drainage plan 

requirements.   

 

The third section is a proposed Wastewater Text Amendment to Update Unified Development 

Ordinance and Sewer Use Ordinance.  The change is necessary to comply with the Camden County 

Future Land Use Plans. 

 

Recommendation: 

Motion to set Public Hearing for August 1, 2022 

8.K.a

Packet Pg. 142

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

g
en

d
aS

u
m

m
ar

y_
T

ex
tA

m
en

d
m

en
ts

  (
33

39
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 T

ex
t 

A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



Ordinance No. 2022-08-02 
An Ordinance 

Amending the Camden County Code of Ordinances 
Camden County, North Carolina 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS as follows: 
 
Article I:  Purpose 
 
The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend Chapter 151 of the Camden County Code of Ordinances of Camden 
County, North Carolina, which was originally adopted by the County Commissioners on January 1, 1998, and 
subsequently revised February 4, 2019 and subsequently amended, and as otherwise incorporated into the Camden 
County Code. 
 
Article II:  Construction 
 
For purposes of this Ordinance, Article III relates to substantive changes required by the new General Statute 162A-
213 in which underlined words (underline) shall be considered as additions to existing Ordinance language and 
strikethrough words (strikethrough) shall be considered deletions to existing language. New language of proposed 
ordinance shall be shown in italics, underlined, and highlighted (italics). 
 
Article III:   
Amending Camden County Code of Ordinances, specifically Chapter 151 Article 3.8.3 Special Flood Hazard 

Area Overly as follows: 
 
151.3.8.3.C.4.b Certification Requirements 
 

b.  An Elevation Certificate (FEMA Form 81-31, as amended) or Floodproofing Certificate (FEMA Form 
81-65, as amended) is required after the reference level is completed.  Within ten calendar days of 
establishment of the reference level elevation, or floodproofing, by whatever construction means, 
whichever is applicable, it shall be the duty of the permit holder to submit to the Floodplain Administrator 
a certification of the elevation of the reference level, or floodproofed elevation, whichever is applicable 
in relation to mean sea level.  Elevation certification shall be prepared by or under the direct supervision 
of a registered land surveyor or professional engineer and certified by same. Floodproofing certification 
shall be prepared by or under the direct supervision of a professional engineer or architect and certified 
by same.  Any work done within the ten-day calendar period and prior to submission of the certification 
shall be at the permit holder's risk. The Floodplain Administrator shall review the certificate data 
submitted. Deficiencies detected by such review shall be corrected by the permit holder immediately and 
prior to further progressive work being permitted to proceed.  Failure to submit the certification or failure 
to make required corrections shall be cause to issue a stop-work order for the project.  (Optional) 

 
151.3.8.3.D.2.h Accessory Structures 
 

8.  Accessory structures Not larger than one story over 150 square feet and up to 1,000 600 square feet 
or less with a value of less than $15,000 may be permitted below the base flood elevation as defined in 
Section Error! Reference source not found., Error! Reference source not found., provided they 
satisfy the criteria outlined above. 

9.  Accessory structures greater than 1,000 600 square feet shall meet the elevation requirements as 
defined in Section Error! Reference source not found., Error! Reference source not found., or flood 
proofing requirements set forth in Section Error! Reference source not found.. 

 
 
 
Part 2: 
Amending Camden County Code of Ordinances, specifically Chapter 151 Article 6.2.7.B.a.2 and 6.5.2 as 

follows: 
151.3.8.3 Special Flood Hazard Area Overly 

151.3.8.3.5 Duties and Responsibilities of the Floodplain Administrator 
o.  Excavation and filling in the floodplain areas Special Flood Hazard Areas, areas noted as AE in the FIRM 

maps, may be allowed at the approval of the county. Cut and fill for new development in the floodplain will 
only may be acceptable if the net volume available within the floodplain remains the same 
(https://msc.fema.gov/portal/advanceSearch). The volumes will be judged from one-foot contour to the next. 

8.K.b

Packet Pg. 143

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

F
o

rT
ex

tA
m

en
d

m
en

ts
_8

-1
-2

2 
 (

33
39

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



No credit will be provided for excavation below the normal water elevation of the creek or below the ground 
water table, whichever is higher. The Engineer will provide the areas and volumes at one-foot contour 
intervals for the existing conditions and demonstrate through volume calculations that the proposed condition 
equals or provides more storage volume for the development. The calculation and demonstration shall begin 
at the normal elevation, or invert elevation, and proceed by even one-foot increments to the FIRM reported 
base flood elevation for the immediate area. The cut and fill within the floodplain area must take place within 
the general confines of the development or within 500 feet of the river station shown on the FEMA maps. 

 
q.    As an alternative to Item o of this Section, new developments which lie within a floodplain may fill 

beyond the balance limitations as provided by Item o if they subject their parcel and development to 
the Stormwater Management Plan Review process prescribed by Table 7.1.3 in this Ordinance and a 
Drainage Stormwater Study is performed in accordance with Division 7 of the County’s Stormwater 
Drainage Design Manual. The Drainage Stormwater Study in this instance must show, the post 
development 100-year discharge rate is held to the pre-development discharge rate and that the 
hydraulic grade lines are not increased at any point immediately upstream or downstream of the 
development. This alternative will only be acceptable after a preapplication meeting with the County’s 
Stormwater Engineer, County Planning Director or their designee, and the applicant or their design 
engineer and an appropriately scope of analysis is agreed to. 

 
 
Part 3: 
Amending Camden County Code of Ordinances, specifically Chapter 151 Article 2.3.18, 2.3.20, 6.2.7 and 6.5.2 

as follows: 

151.2.18 Minor Subdivision 

1. Purpose and Intent 
The purpose for this minor subdivision review procedure is to allow certain land divisions to be reviewed via 
an administrative review procedure based on the limited number of new lots proposed. 

2. Applicability 
a. Subdivisions of land that include up to five lots (including the residual parcel) (see Figure 2.3.18.B: Minor 

Subdivision) shall be reviewed in accordance with the standards in this section. 
b. All lots that are adjacent to an existing public water supply line and/or wastewater system lines prior to 

approval of a minor subdivision shall connect to the public systems as part of the establishment of the minor 
subdivision.  However, connection to the public water systems for one or more lots shall not require the 
subdivision to be reviewed as a preliminary plat. 

c. No lot within a minor subdivision (including the residual parcel) shall be the subject of another minor 
subdivision application for a period of five years from the date the minor subdivision is approved.  Nothing 
shall limit the timing of a subsequent application for a major subdivision, expedited subdivision, or transfer 
plat. 

3. Minor Subdivision Procedure 
 

6.  Minor Subdivision Review Standards 
i. A minor subdivision shall be approved if the application complies with the following: 

 
8. All lots (including the parent parcel) bordering an existing public water supply system water line and/or 
wastewater system sewer line shall connect to the public water supply system as part of the minor 
subdivision; 
. 

ii. Minor subdivisions of land located within the special flood hazard area shall comply with the standards in 
Section Error! Reference source not found., Error! Reference source not found., and include the following 
statement: 
“Use of land within a floodplain or a special flood hazard area is substantially restricted by Camden County.” 

iii.If the minor subdivision is required to provide a connection to a public water supply system and/or wastewater 
system, the plat shall include the following statement: 
“The developer is required to install all wastewater and/or water lines and related improvements.” 

 

 

8.K.b

Packet Pg. 144

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

F
o

rT
ex

tA
m

en
d

m
en

ts
_8

-1
-2

2 
 (

33
39

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

 

151.2.3.20 Preliminary Plat 

3. If the preliminary plat is required to provide a connection to a public water supply system 
and wastewater system, the plat shall include the following statement: 

“The developer is required to install all wastewater and water lines and related 
improvements.” 

 

151.6.2 Required Infrastructure 

151.6.2.2 Generally  

151.6.2.2.3.  Sanitary Sewage System 
iv. In cases of  When development being is 

required to be served by a public or 
central private sewage systems, the 
subdivider or developer shall install all 
sewer lines in accordance with the 
standards in this Ordinance, the 
procedures manual, and other State or 
federal requirements. 

v. Sanitary sewage lines, including pump 
stations and treatment facilities shall be 
dedicated to the County for maintenance 
and operation.  Sewer lines serving 
individual lots or uses prior to their 
connection to the central collection 
system shall not be the responsibility of 
the County. 

vi. Centralized private sewage systems 
shall be offered for dedication to the 
County, who may choose to accept the 
system in the sole discretion of the Board 
of County Commissioners. 

151.6.5. Conservation Subdivision 

6.5.2 Applicability 

4.  Where Prohibited 

a. The conservation subdivision option is not 
available for use in the NR, VR, or MX 
districts. 

b. Suburban Residential Zoning District will 
not have individual septic systems due to 
the decrease in the Dimensional 
Requirements specifically the Minimum 
Lot Area, from 1 acre to 0.5 acre. 

 
 

 

 

8.K.b

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

F
o

rT
ex

tA
m

en
d

m
en

ts
_8

-1
-2

2 
 (

33
39

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



 

 

 

 

USE OF PUBLIC SEWERS 

§ 52.015  REQUIREMENT OF SEWER USE. 

 

(A) When the owner of a property, with access to public sanitary sewer, under District 

jurisdiction, including an owner of a non-district sewer system, is informed by the 

Albemarle Regional Health Services (ARHS) that the wastewater system serving the 

property is deemed non-repairable, such wastewater shall be discharged into a public 

sanitary sewer, subject to the provisions of § 52.125.  The owner shall install at his 

expense a suitable building sewer or collecting sewer, as applicable, and shall install any 

other facilities necessary to connect the building sewer or collecting sewer to the public 

sewer at an access point provided by the district.  The owner of real property shall, within 

six months of date of notification, make application and connection to the public sanitary 

sewer in accordance with the provisions of this section and §§ 52.105 through 52.112 off 

this chapter. 

 

(B) Whenever a building sewer or collecting sewer connected to the public sanitary sewer 

becomes clogged, broken, out of order or detrimental to the use of the public sewer, the 

owner having charge of any building or premises through which the building sewer or 

collecting sewer collects wastewater shall, upon notification by the Board, reconstruct, 

alter, clean or repair the building sewer or collecting sewer as the condition of such may 

require within ten days after receiving notification. 

 

(C) New construction, either subdivision or single lot, residential or commercial, with access 

to public sanitary sewer system under District jurisdiction, shall be required to connect 

their sanitary wastewater drain to the system and such wastewater shall be discharged into 

a public sanitary sewer, subject to the provisions of § 52.125.  The owner shall install at 

his expense a suitable building sewer or collecting sewer, as applicable, and shall install 

any other facilities necessary to connect the building sewer or collecting sewer to the 

public sewer at an access point provided by the district.  The owner of real property shall 

make application and connection to the public sanitary sewer in accordance with the 

provisions of this section and §§ 52.105 through 52.112 of this chapter. 

 

 

 

 

 

(Ord. 2005-01-01, passed 2-21-05) 

(Revised 2022-6-27, passed 2022-08-00) 
 

8.K.b

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

F
o

rT
ex

tA
m

en
d

m
en

ts
_8

-1
-2

2 
 (

33
39

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 T
ex

t 
A

m
en

d
m

en
t)

https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/camdencounty/latest/camdencounty_nc/0-0-0-1204#JD_52.125
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/camdencounty/latest/camdencounty_nc/0-0-0-1118#JD_52.105
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/camdencounty/latest/camdencounty_nc/0-0-0-1195#JD_52.112
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/camdencounty/latest/camdencounty_nc/0-0-0-1204#JD_52.125
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/camdencounty/latest/camdencounty_nc/0-0-0-1118#JD_52.105
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/camdencounty/latest/camdencounty_nc/0-0-0-1195#JD_52.112


 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Consent Agenda 

 

Item Number: 8.L 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Amber Curling, 

 Planning & Zoning 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Set Public Hearing - Rezoning Request 

 

Attachments: 1_AgendaSummary_SawyerRezoningConsentAgenda

 (DOCX) 

2-SawyerRezoningStaffReport (DOCX) 

3_ZoningMapAmendmentApplication (PDF) 

4_Deed9AcresSection (PDF) 

5_Deed872Hwy343 (PDF) 

6_SawyerRezoningNeighborhoodSummary (PDF) 

7_ZoningComparison (PDF) 

 

Agenda summary and supporting documentation attached. 

8.L

Packet Pg. 147



Camden County Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

        

Meeting Date:   July 5, 2022 

 

Attachments:   Sawyer Rezoning Staff Findings, Application, Site Plan, Zoning Comparison, 

Neighborhood Meeting Summary, Deed, Ordinance, Resolution to amend CAMA 

Land Use Map 

 

Submitted By: Planning Department  

 

Item Title:  Application for Zoning Map Amendment from Waverly Sawyer 

 

 

 

Summary: 

 

Waverly Sawyer has requested a map amendment for approximately 10 acres from the Highway 

Commercial (HC) zoning district to the Neighborhood Residential (NR) zoning district.  The 10 acres 

consist of an approximately 1-acre parcel at 872 NC Hwy 343 N and approximately 9 acres from an 

adjoining parcel to the north west.  Both parcels are located in South Mills Township. 

 

The neighborhood meeting was held on April 12, 2022.  On July 20, 2022, the Planning Board meeting 

will be held. 

 

The proposed zoning change is inconsistent with the CAMA Future Land Use Map.  The CAMA Future 

Land Use Maps has the majority of property identified as Low Density Residentials. 

 

The proposed zoning change is inconsistent with the County’s Comprehensive Future Land Use Map 

which identifies the parcels as Rural Preservation. 

 

 

Recommendation: 

 

Motion to set Public Hearing for August 1, 2022. 

8.L.a

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_A
g

en
d

aS
u

m
m

ar
y_

S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
C

o
n

se
n

tA
g

en
d

a 
 (

33
40

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t)



` 

 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

 

UDO# 2022-06-09 

 Zoning Map Amendment  

for Sawyer Property on HWY 343 N 
 

 

Project Information: 

 

File Reference: 2022-06-09 

Project Name:           N/A 

PIN:    01-8907-00-43-8620-0000 

Applicant:               Waverly M. Sawyer  

Address:                 117 Havenwood Drive 

                                 Camden, NC, 27921 

Phone:  252-202-2882 

Email:  waverly702@gmail.com 

 

Agent for Applicant:  same as above  

Address:    same as above     

 

   

 

Current Owner of Record: Waverly M. Sawyer 

and Linda B. Sawyer  

 

Meeting Dates: 

April 12, 2022  Neighborhood Meeting 

July 20, 2022  Planning Board Meeting   

 Application Received: June 14, 2022 

By:  Amber Curling, Planning 

 

Application Fee paid:  $650.00 Ck# 7717 

 

Completeness of Application:  Application is 

generally complete 

 

Documents received upon filing of application 

or otherwise included:  

A. Rezoning Application  

B. Deed 

C. GIS Aerial, Current zoning, Comprehensive 

Plan Future Land Use and CAMA Land Use 

Plan Suitability Maps 

D. Neighborhood Meeting Comments 

E. Zoning Comparison: Highway Commercial 

(HC) to Neighborhood Residential (NR) 

 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

Request:  Waverly Sawyer is requesting a Zoning Map Amendment per Article 151.2.3.30 of the 

Unified Development Ordinance for a total of 10 acres from Highway Commercial (HC) to 

Neighborhood Residential (NR) zoning district. 

 

Location Description: The 10 acres consist of an approximately 1-acre parcel at 872 NC Hwy 343 N 

and approximately 9 acres from an adjoining parcel to the north west.  The parcel ID for 872 Hwy 343 N 

is 01-8907-00-43-8620-0000.  The parcel ID of the approximately 9-acre parcel is 01-8907-00-65-3412-

0000.  Both parcels are located in South Mills Township.  

  

8.L.b

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
33

40
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t)



` 

Rezoning from Highway Commercial Zoning District (151.3.6.5): 

The Highway Commercial district is applied to lots along the County’s major roadways (e.g., US 158, 

US 17, NC 34, and NC 343) and is intended for automobile-oriented commercial development as well as 

large floorplate commercial uses and uses that require or generate truck traffic. The district also 

accommodates agricultural and institutional uses as well as higher density residential uses with a special 

use permit. New development in the HC district is grouped and configured to ensure regular lateral 

vehicular and pedestrian access along major transportation routes as a means of establishing a well-

connected transportation system. New development is configured to maintain high visual quality along 

the major roadway, or is fully screened from view. Sufficient spacing and screening is included along lot 

lines shared with adjacent residential zoning districts to ensure compatibility. New commercial and 

multi-family developments in the district are subject to the design standards in Article 151.5 

Development Standards. 

 

Rezoning to Neighborhood Residential Zoning District (151.3.5.5) 

The Neighborhood Residential (NR) district serves as a transition district from the rural and suburban 

portions of the County to areas proximate to village centers and major commercial corridors. The district 

is intended to accommodate single-family detached homes in a neighborhood setting at moderate 

densities. Mobile and manufactured homes on individual lots, conservation subdivisions, and 

agricultural uses are limited in order to preserve the district’s neighborhood character. Manufactured 

homes are not allowed on lots within 5,280 linear feet of a village center boundary. The district’s 

40,000-square-foot minimum lot area may be reduced when lots are within one mile of a designated 

village center boundary and served by public sewer. District regulations discourage uses that interfere 

with the development of residential neighborhoods or that are detrimental to the district’s single-family 

detached neighborhood character.  

 

SITE DATA 
 

Size of Lots:   Approximately 1 acre and 9 acres for a total of approximately 10 acres 

Flood Zone:   X 

Zoning District(s):  Highway Commercial (HC) 

Existing Land Uses:  1-acre Office/Retail property and 9 acres is farmland 

 

Adjacent Zoning & Uses: 

 Northeast Northwest Southwest Southeast 

Zoning Working Lands (WL) Working Lands (WL) Working Lands (WL) Working Lands 

(WL) 

Use Farmland  Church and 

Residential Lots 

Farmland Residential 

Lot 

Farmland 

 

Proposed Use(s) – The proposed use is residential development. 

 

History of property:  

Ordinance No. 2019-10-01 rezoned the 10 acres from Working Lands to Highway Commercial.   The 

purpose of this rezoning was due to existing business and future plan.  The 1-acre site was previously 

used as a business, but is currently vacant. The 9-acres site is part of a larger parcel which has been used 

as farmland and would need to be subdivided. 

8.L.b

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
33

40
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t)



` 

Vicinity Map – NC Hwy 343 N in South Mills Township 

 
 

8.L.b

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
33

40
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t)



` 

Zoning Districts: 

    

Neighborhood 

Residential 
Working 

 Lands 

Working 

 Lands 

8.L.b

Packet Pg. 152

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
33

40
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t)



` 

Land Suitability: 

 

Moderate in Land 

Suitability 

Very Low in Land 

Suitability 

Very High in 

Land Suitability 

8.L.b

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
33

40
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t)



` 

 

Watershed Map  

 

  

Property in the 

Watershed 

8.L.b

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
33

40
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t)



` 

Wetlands Map  

 
 

Not located in the Wetlands 

8.L.b

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
33

40
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t)



` 

Floodplain Map  

 

        

 Located in Flood Zone X 

Flood Zone  

AE 

Flood Zone  

Shaded X 

8.L.b

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
33

40
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t)



` 

 Drainage -It appears the property drains to Pasquotank River. 

 
 

8.L.b

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
33

40
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t)



` 

Comprehensive Future Land Use Map  

 

  
 

Rural Preservation 

Rural Preservation 

8.L.b

Packet Pg. 158

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
33

40
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t)



` 

CAMA Future Land Use Map 

 

Low Density 

Residential - 1 

acre or greater) 

Conservation 

8.L.b

Packet Pg. 159

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
33

40
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t)



` 

Water and Sewer Map 

 

Water and Sewer lines are adjacent to property 

8.L.b

Packet Pg. 160

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
33

40
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t)



` 

Goal when Reviewing of Zoning Regulations in accordance with the Camden County Land Use Plans is 

to make sure the project is designed to: 

• to lessen congestion in the streets;  

• to secure safety from fire, panic, and other dangers; 

• to promote health and the general welfare; 

• to provide adequate light and air;  

• to prevent the overcrowding of land; 

• to avoid undue concentration of population; and  

• to facilitate the adequate provision of transportation, water, sewage, schools parks and other 

public requirements 

 

 

INFRASTRUCTURE & COMMUNITY FACILITIES 

Water:  Water lines are located adjacent to property along Hwy 343 N 

Sewer:  Sewer line located adjacent to property along Hwy 343 N 

Fire District:  South Mills Fire District  

Schools:  Proposed rezoning may have an impact on Schools  

Traffic:  Proposed rezoning may have on traffic 
 

 

CONSISTENCY with PLANS and MAPS 

 

CAMA Land Use Plan Policies & Objectives: 

 

 Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

 

The CAMA Land Use Plan was adopted by the Camden County Board of Commissioners on April 4, 

2005.  The proposed zoning change is inconsistent in that the CAMA Future Land Use Map has the 

property identified as Low Density Residential (on lots 1 acre or greater). Neighborhood Residential 

(NR) zoning permits a minimum lot area of 40,000 square feet, which is less than 1 acre.  

 

2035 Comprehensive Plan 

 

 Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

   

The County’s Comprehensive Future Land Use Map (Adopted 2012) shows the parcel to be Rural 

Preservation. Rural Preservation promotes the continued use of working lands and protection of 

environmentally sensitive lands from more intense development.  The Plan also states Rural 

Preservation to be very low residential use with a maximum density of one dwelling unit per 5-acres. 

The Neighborhood Residential (NR) zoning permits a minimum lot size of 40,000 square feet, which is 

less than 1-acre in area.  

 

Comprehensive Transportation Plan  

 

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☐ 

 

 Property abuts NC Hwy 343 N 

8.L.b

Packet Pg. 161

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
33

40
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t)



` 

 

 Other Plans officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners 

 N/A 

 
 

 

SPECIFIC CAMA LAND USE QUESTIONS FOR THE PLANNING BOARD TO CONSIDER: 

 

1.  Does Camden County need more land in the zoning class requested?   

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

Reasoning:  In the appropriate location Neighborhood Residential (NR) zoning district works well.  

Neighborhood Residential 3.08% Camden 1.69% South Mills 2.47% Courthouse 5.97% Shiloh 

 

2.  Is there other land in the county that would be more appropriate for the proposed uses? 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

Reasoning: There is other land in the County which is currently zoned as Neighborhood Residential 

(NR) or which could be rezoned as such and not be in conflict with the CAMA Future Land Use Plan or 

the 2035 Comprehensive Plan. 

 

3.  Is the request in accordance with the Camden County land use plan? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning: The request is not in accordance with the Comprehensive and CAMA Future land use plans.  

The Zoning Comparison included in the package identifies specific uses for each zoning district. 

 

4.  Will the request have serious impact on traffic circulation, parking space, sewer and water 

services, other utilities? 

Yes ☐ No ☐ 

Reasoning:  The proposed zoning uses will have an impact on all public services. The specific service and 

to what extent of the impact will be determined during the development approval process of the property. 

 

5.  Will the request have an impact on other county services, including police protection, fire 

protection or the school system? 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

Reasoning: The proposed zoning uses will have an impact on all public services. The specific service and to 

what extent of the impact will be determined during the development approval process of the property. 

 

6.  Is there a good possibility that the request, as proposed, will result in lessening the enjoyment 

or use of adjacent properties?   

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  All permitted uses in the requested zoning classification should not lessen the enjoyment or 

use of any adjacent properties. 

 

7.  Will the request, as proposed cause serious noise, odors, light, activity, or unusual 

disturbances? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  All uses permitted in the requested zoning classification should not cause any serious noise, 

odors, light activity, or unusual disturbances. 

8.L.b

Packet Pg. 162

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
33

40
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t)



` 

8.  Does the request raise serious legal questions such as spot zoning, hardship, violation of 

precedents, or need for this type of use? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning: There does not appear to be any serious legal concerns related to spot zoning, hardship, or 

violation or precedents. 

 

9.  Does the request impact any CAMA Areas of Environmental Concern? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  The request does not impact a CAMA Area of Environmental Concern. 

 

 

Summary 

 
The proposed zoning map amendment is inconsistent with the 2005 CAMA Future Land Use Plan which 

has the property identified as Low Density Residential (on 1-2 acre lots).  

 

   

The proposed zoning map amendment is inconsistent with the 2012 County’s Comprehensive Future 

Land Use Map which has the property identified as Rural Preservation.  

  

8.L.b

Packet Pg. 163

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

-S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

  (
33

40
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t)



8.L.c

Packet Pg. 164

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

_Z
o

n
in

g
M

ap
A

m
en

d
m

en
tA

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
33

40
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t)



8.L.c

Packet Pg. 165

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

_Z
o

n
in

g
M

ap
A

m
en

d
m

en
tA

p
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
33

40
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t)



8.L.d

Packet Pg. 166

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_D
ee

d
9A

cr
es

S
ec

ti
o

n
  (

33
40

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t)



8.L.d

Packet Pg. 167

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_D
ee

d
9A

cr
es

S
ec

ti
o

n
  (

33
40

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t)



8.L.d

Packet Pg. 168

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_D
ee

d
9A

cr
es

S
ec

ti
o

n
  (

33
40

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t)



8.L.d

Packet Pg. 169

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_D
ee

d
9A

cr
es

S
ec

ti
o

n
  (

33
40

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t)



8.L.d

Packet Pg. 170

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_D
ee

d
9A

cr
es

S
ec

ti
o

n
  (

33
40

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t)



8.L.d

Packet Pg. 171

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_D
ee

d
9A

cr
es

S
ec

ti
o

n
  (

33
40

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t)



8.L.e

Packet Pg. 172

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_D
ee

d
87

2H
w

y3
43

  (
33

40
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t)



8.L.e

Packet Pg. 173

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_D
ee

d
87

2H
w

y3
43

  (
33

40
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t)



8.L.e

Packet Pg. 174

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_D
ee

d
87

2H
w

y3
43

  (
33

40
 :

 S
et

 P
u

b
lic

 H
ea

ri
n

g
 -

 R
ez

o
n

in
g

 R
eq

u
es

t)



From: Waverly Sawyer
To: acurling@camdencountync.gov
Subject: [External] 872 N. 343 REZONING REQUEST
Date: Thursday, April 14, 2022 9:06:47 AM

Letters were mailed March 22,  2022 to adjoining property owners.  The letters gave intent and
an illustrative map.  Questions or comments were welcomed.  None were received.  Also, 
notice of a 6:00 pm meeting on April 12,  2022 at the Historic Camden Courthouse was
included in the letter.  None of the Addressed Parties attended the April 12 meeting.

Those present were:
Waverly M. Sawyer
Linda B. Sawyer
Camden County Planning Staff

           W. Sawyer

The sender (gmail.com) is outside of the organization. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Protected by PhishProtection. When you click on a link in the email above, the destination
website will be analyzed for known threats. If a known threat or suspicious content is
detected, you will see a warning.

8.L.f

Packet Pg. 175

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 6

_S
aw

ye
rR

ez
o

n
in

g
N

ei
g

h
b

o
rh

o
o

d
S

u
m

m
ar

y 
 (

33
40

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t)

mailto:waverly702@gmail.com
mailto:acurling@camdencountync.gov


Use Class / Main Category / Category "P"=Permitted, "S"=Special Use Permit, Blank=Prohibited

Camden County, North Carolina
Principal Use Table, District Comparison

NRHC

Agricultural
AGRICULTURE/HORTICULTURE

All Agriculture/ Horticulture Uses P

ANIMAL HUSBANDRY

Animal Husbandry Uses (excluding stockyards and slaughterhouses)

Stockyard/Slaughterhouse

AGRICULTURAL SUPPORT

Agricultural Research Facility P

Agri-Education/ Agri-Entertainment S

Distribution Hub for Agriculture Products P

Equestrian Facility S

Farm Machinery Sales, Rental, or Service S

Farmers Market P

Roadside Market P

Residential
HOUSEHOLD LIVING USES

Bungalow Court

Duplex

Live/Work Dwelling

Manufactured Home - Const After 6-15-1976 P

Manufactured Home or Mobile Home Park

Mobile Home - Const Prior to 6-15-1976

Multi-Family S

Pocket Neighborhood P

Quadraplex P

Single-Family Attached S

Single-Family Detached P

Triplex P

Upper Story Residential P

GROUP LIVING

Dormitory S

Family Care Home P

Group Home S

Rooming House S

Page 1 of 5

8.L.g

Packet Pg. 176

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

_Z
o

n
in

g
C

o
m

p
ar

is
o

n
  (

33
40

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t)



Use Class / Main Category / Category "P"=Permitted, "S"=Special Use Permit, Blank=Prohibited

Camden County, North Carolina
Principal Use Table, District Comparison

NRHC

Institutional
COMMUNITY SERVICES

Community Center P

Cultural Facility S

Library P

Museum P

Senior Center P

Youth Club Facility P

DAY CARE

Adult Day Care Center P

Child Care Center P

EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES

Major S

Moderate P

Minor P P

GOVERNMENT FACILITIES

Government Office P

Government Maintenance, Storage, or Distribution Facility P

HEALTH CARE FACILITIES

Drug or Alcohol Treatment Facility S

Hospital S

Medical Treatment Facility P

INSTITUTIONS

Assisted Living Facility S

Club or Lodge P

Halfway House S

Nursing Home S

Psychiatric Treatment Facility S

Religious Institution P

PARKS AND OPEN AREAS

Cemetery S S

Community Garden P

Park, Public or Private P S

Page 2 of 5

8.L.g

Packet Pg. 177

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

_Z
o

n
in

g
C

o
m

p
ar

is
o

n
  (

33
40

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t)



Use Class / Main Category / Category "P"=Permitted, "S"=Special Use Permit, Blank=Prohibited

Camden County, North Carolina
Principal Use Table, District Comparison

NRHC

PUBLIC SAFETY

Police, Fire, or EMS Facility P S

Correctional Facility

Security Training Facility

TRANSPORTATION

Airport

Helicopter Landing Facility S

Passenger Terminal, Surface Transportation S

UTILITIES

Utility, Major P S

Utility, Minor P P

Commercial
ADULT AND SEXUALLY-ORIENTED BUSINESSES

All Adult and Sexually-Oriented Businesses

ANIMAL CARE

Major P

Minor P

EATING ESTABLISHMENTS

Restaurant, Major P

Restaurant, Minor P

Bar, Nightclub, or Dance Hall S

OFFICES

Major S

Minor P

PARKING, COMMERCIAL

All P

PERSONAL SERVICES

Major P

Minor P

RECREATION/ENTERTAINMENT, INDOOR

Major P

Minor P

Page 3 of 5

8.L.g

Packet Pg. 178

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

_Z
o

n
in

g
C

o
m

p
ar

is
o

n
  (

33
40

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t)



Use Class / Main Category / Category "P"=Permitted, "S"=Special Use Permit, Blank=Prohibited

Camden County, North Carolina
Principal Use Table, District Comparison

NRHC

RECREATION/ENTERTAINMENT, OUTDOOR

Major S

Minor P

Firing Range

Water-Related Uses

RETAIL SALES

Flea Market S

Grocery Store P

Major P

Minor P

STORAGE, COMMERCIAL

Major P

Minor P

TELECOMMUNICATIONS

Antenna Collocation (on a Building) P

Antenna Collocation (on a Tower) P

Small Wireless Facility P

Telecommunications Tower, Freestanding S

Telecommunications Tower, Stealth P P

VEHICLE ESTABLISHMENT

Major P

Minor P

VISITOR ACCOMMODATIONS

Bed and Breakfast

Campground S

Hotel or Motel S

Industrial
EXTRACTIVE INDUSTRY

All

INDUSTRIAL SERVICES

Contractor Service P

Crabshedding

Fuel Oil or Bottled Gas Distributor

General Industrial Service and Repair S

Heavy Equipment Sales, Rental, or Service P

Research and Development P

Page 4 of 5

8.L.g

Packet Pg. 179

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

_Z
o

n
in

g
C

o
m

p
ar

is
o

n
  (

33
40

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t)



Use Class / Main Category / Category "P"=Permitted, "S"=Special Use Permit, Blank=Prohibited

Camden County, North Carolina
Principal Use Table, District Comparison

NRHC

MANUFACTURING AND PRODUCTION

Manufacturing, Heavy

Manufacturing, Light P

POWER GENERATION

Solar Array S S

Wind Energy Conversion Facility S

WAREHOUSE AND FREIGHT MOVEMENT

All P

WASTE-RELATED SERVICES

Incinerator

Land Application of Sludge/Septage

Landfill

Public Convenience Center or Transfer Station P

Recycling Center P

Salvage or Junkyard

Waste Composting Facility

WHOLESALE SALES

Major P

Minor P

Page 5 of 5

8.L.g

Packet Pg. 180

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 7

_Z
o

n
in

g
C

o
m

p
ar

is
o

n
  (

33
40

 :
 S

et
 P

u
b

lic
 H

ea
ri

n
g

 -
 R

ez
o

n
in

g
 R

eq
u

es
t)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.A 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Tammie Krauss, Register of Deeds 

 Register of Deeds 

 Prepared by: Karen Davis 

 
Item Title   Register of Deeds Report 

 

Attachments: Register of Deeds Report (PDF) 

 

11.A

Packet Pg. 181



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 182

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
33

29
 :

 R
eg

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

ee
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
)



11.A.a

Packet Pg. 183

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eg
is

te
r 

o
f 

D
ee

d
s 

R
ep

o
rt

  (
33

29
 :

 R
eg

is
te

r 
o

f 
D

ee
d

s 
R

ep
o

rt
)



 

Board of Commissioners 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

 
Information, Reports & Minutes From Other Agencies 

 

Item Number: 11.B 

Meeting Date:   July 05, 2022 

 

Submitted By: Kim Perry, 

 Library 

 Prepared by: Kim Perry 

 
Item Title   Library Report 5/2022 

 

Attachments: 22-05 (DOCX) 

 

11.B

Packet Pg. 184



Camden County Public Library 

May 2022 Statistics 
 

Visitor Count 355 

Materials Check Outs & Renewals 1,439 

Computer/ Wireless Use 87/63 

Questions Answered 140 

Children’s Programs/Attendance 1/6 

Adult Programs/Attendance 0/0 

Outreach Programs/Attendance 1/16 

Meeting Room Usage/Attendance 3/29 

Days/Hours Open 8/62 

# Items in Collection 19,831 

Library Card Holders 2,964 

 

Comparison by Year 

2020-2022 

  
           

 

**The Library was closed 5/11-5/31 while moving to our new location. During this closure the facility was 

closed to the public and all services suspended. 

 

0

728

355

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

2020 MAY 2021 MAY 2022 MAY

Attendance

1,037

2,304

1,439

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

2020 MAY 2021 MAY 2022 MAY

Circulation

11.B.a

Packet Pg. 185

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

2-
05

  (
33

23
 :

 L
ib

ra
ry

 R
ep

o
rt

)


	Agenda Packet
	Call to Order
	Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance
	Pastor Tommy Berry, Shiloh Baptist Church

	1. Consideration of Agenda
	2. Conflict of Interest Disclosure Statement
	3. Public Comments
	4. Presentations
	A. 3336 : Chairman Ross Munro
	Printout: 3336 : Chairman Ross Munro

	B. 3326 : Camden County Update - North Carolina Department of Transportation
	Printout: 3326 : Camden County Update - North Carolina Department of Transportation


	Recess to South Camden Water & Sewer District Board of Directors
	Reconvene Board of Commissioners
	5. Public Hearings
	A. 3330 : Schedule of Fees Amendment
	Printout: 3330 : Schedule of Fees Amendment
	a. AgendaSummary_Fee Schedule Adjustment
	b. Water & Sewer Proposed Fees

	B. 3331 : Commerce Park Property Sale
	Printout: 3331 : Commerce Park Property Sale
	a. Lucia Lease_Purchase Agreement


	6. New Business
	A. 3343 : Tax Report
	Printout: 3343 : Tax Report
	a. May20220628103332245

	B. 3327 : Interlocal Agreement for Central Communications Amendment
	Printout: 3327 : Interlocal Agreement for Central Communications Amendment
	a. Amendment to Interlocal Agreement for Central Communications

	C. 3328 : Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Coordination Services Amendment
	Printout: 3328 : Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Coordination Services Amendment
	a. Amendment to Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Coordination Services


	7. Board Appointments
	A. 3325 : Planning Board
	Printout: 3325 : Planning Board

	B. 3338 : Department of Social Services Board
	Printout: 3338 : Department of Social Services Board

	C. 3345 : Tourism Development Authority Board
	Printout: 3345 : Tourism Development Authority Board

	D. 3341 : NCACC Conference & Legislative Goals Conference Delegate
	Printout: 3341 : NCACC Conference & Legislative Goals Conference Delegate


	8. Consent Agenda
	A. 3324 : BOC Meeting Minutes - June 6, 2022
	Printout: 3324 : BOC Meeting Minutes - June 6, 2022
	a. bocminutes_060622

	B. 3333 : School Budget Amendments
	Printout: 3333 : School Budget Amendments
	a. School Budget Amendments

	C. 3332 : Tax Collection Report
	Printout: 3332 : Tax Collection Report
	a. Tax Collection Report

	D. 3320 : DMV Monthly Report
	Printout: 3320 : DMV Monthly Report
	a. DMV MONTHLY REPORT AUG, 2022 RENEWALS

	E. 3322 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 - March 2022
	Printout: 3322 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 - March 2022
	a. REFUNDS OVER $100.00 MARCH, 22

	F. 3321 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 - May 2022
	Printout: 3321 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 - May 2022
	a. REFUNDS OVER $100.00 MAY, 2022

	G. 3346 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	Printout: 3346 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	a. Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	H. 3334 : Surplus Property Request
	Printout: 3334 : Surplus Property Request
	a. Surplus Property Request

	I. 3335 : Summer Camp Assistant Contract
	Printout: 3335 : Summer Camp Assistant Contract
	a. Summer Camp Assistant Contract

	J. 3344 : Annual Senior Nutrition Contract
	Printout: 3344 : Annual Senior Nutrition Contract
	a. Senior Nutrition Contract

	K. 3339 : Set Public Hearing - Ordinance Text Amendment
	Printout: 3339 : Set Public Hearing - Ordinance Text Amendment
	a. AgendaSummary_TextAmendments
	b. OrdinanceForTextAmendments_8-1-22

	L. 3340 : Set Public Hearing - Rezoning Request
	Printout: 3340 : Set Public Hearing - Rezoning Request
	a. 1_AgendaSummary_SawyerRezoningConsentAgenda
	b. 2-SawyerRezoningStaffReport
	c. 3_ZoningMapAmendmentApplication
	d. 4_Deed9AcresSection
	e. 5_Deed872Hwy343
	f. 6_SawyerRezoningNeighborhoodSummary
	g. 7_ZoningComparison


	9. County Manager's Report
	10. Commissioners' Reports
	11. Information, Reports & Minutes from Other Agencies
	A. 3329 : Register of Deeds Report
	Printout: 3329 : Register of Deeds Report
	a. Register of Deeds Report

	B. 3323 : Library Report
	Printout: 3323 : Library Report
	a. 22-05


	12. Other Matters
	13. Adjourn

	Appendix
	4.A · 3336 : Chairman Ross Munro
	4.B · 3326 : Camden County Update - North Carolina Department of Transportation
	5.A · 3330 : Schedule of Fees Amendment
	5.A.a · AgendaSummary_Fee Schedule Adjustment
	5.A.b · Water & Sewer Proposed Fees

	5.B · 3331 : Commerce Park Property Sale
	5.B.a · Lucia Lease_Purchase Agreement

	6.A · 3343 : Tax Report
	6.A.a · May20220628103332245

	6.B · 3327 : Interlocal Agreement for Central Communications Amendment
	6.B.a · Amendment to Interlocal Agreement for Central Communications

	6.C · 3328 : Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Coordination Services Amendment
	6.C.a · Amendment to Interlocal Agreement for Emergency Management Coordination Services

	7.A · 3325 : Planning Board
	7.B · 3338 : Department of Social Services Board
	7.C · 3345 : Tourism Development Authority Board
	7.D · 3341 : NCACC Conference & Legislative Goals Conference Delegate
	8.A · 3324 : BOC Meeting Minutes - June 6, 2022
	8.A.a · bocminutes_060622

	8.B · 3333 : School Budget Amendments
	8.B.a · School Budget Amendments

	8.C · 3332 : Tax Collection Report
	8.C.a · Tax Collection Report

	8.D · 3320 : DMV Monthly Report
	8.D.a · DMV MONTHLY REPORT AUG, 2022 RENEWALS

	8.E · 3322 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 - March 2022
	8.E.a · REFUNDS OVER $100.00 MARCH, 22

	8.F · 3321 : Vehicle Refunds Over $100.00 - May 2022
	8.F.a · REFUNDS OVER $100.00 MAY, 2022

	8.G · 3346 : Pickups, Releases & Refunds
	8.G.a · Pickups, Releases & Refunds

	8.H · 3334 : Surplus Property Request
	8.H.a · Surplus Property Request

	8.I · 3335 : Summer Camp Assistant Contract
	8.I.a · Summer Camp Assistant Contract

	8.J · 3344 : Annual Senior Nutrition Contract
	8.J.a · Senior Nutrition Contract

	8.K · 3339 : Set Public Hearing - Ordinance Text Amendment
	8.K.a · AgendaSummary_TextAmendments
	8.K.b · OrdinanceForTextAmendments_8-1-22

	8.L · 3340 : Set Public Hearing - Rezoning Request
	8.L.a · 1_AgendaSummary_SawyerRezoningConsentAgenda
	8.L.b · 2-SawyerRezoningStaffReport
	8.L.c · 3_ZoningMapAmendmentApplication
	8.L.d · 4_Deed9AcresSection
	8.L.e · 5_Deed872Hwy343
	8.L.f · 6_SawyerRezoningNeighborhoodSummary
	8.L.g · 7_ZoningComparison

	11.A · 3329 : Register of Deeds Report
	11.A.a · Register of Deeds Report

	11.B · 3323 : Library Report
	11.B.a · 22-05



